
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 5, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 876 0394 9909 

Password: 913019 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Richard Mathey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Director of Emergency Services 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Ed Tardoni 

1. Termination and Appeals 

2. Introductory Period 

3. Telecommuting (For Action)  

C. Board Bylaws (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

D. Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care (For Action) Kari Quickenden, 

Chief Clinical Officer 

E. Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board Policy (For Action)    

 Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

F. Public Records Policy (For Action) Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

G. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Taylor Jones 

H. Medical Staff Bylaws Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical Staff President 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

A. Emergency Operations Plan  David Beltran, Security and Emergency Management Director 

B. Board Self-Assessment  Barbara Sowada 

C. Medical Staff Leadership Quality Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 
  

1/250



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 5, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 876 0394 9909 

Password: 913019 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Marty Kelsey 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. Bad Debt (For Action) 

April Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Ed Tardoni 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Fibertech 

2. Wolters Kluwer for UpToDate Subscription Service 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Amendment to Press Ganey Master Service Agreement 

2. ConnectAmerica 

3. Martin Ray 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/250



3/250



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

April 7, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on April 7, 2021, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical 

Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County Board 

of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said she is very proud of our staff. Two years ago, we partnered with Planetree 

and we are pleased with that experience. Today is World Health Day focusing on building a fairer, 

healthier world. Throughout the month we get e-mails from staff, physicians, and patients. Ms. 

Richardson said we wish we could share them all. She read aloud an e-mail from an employee in 

Central Scheduling where she shared a patient experience story related to the culture of the 

Hospital and said she is happy to be associated with MHSC. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda with requested additions by Mr. Tardoni of “for action” where 

applicable was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the February 3, 2021, regular meeting with a correction by 

Dr. Sowada of “things” to “thinks” on page 5, and the minutes of the February 8, 2021, special 

meeting, February 9, 2021, emergency meeting, February 11, 2021, special meeting, February 24, 

2021 special meeting, and March 30, 2021, special meeting as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

4/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, reported numbers are 

holding steady. We have seen a decrease in Covid admissions. Personal protective equipment 

numbers are holding steady. Dr. Jean Stachon and the State announced we have two variants in 

Wyoming. We are helping Public Health by hosting a drive-thru vaccine clinic Friday and 

Saturday, April 9 and 10, from 2-7 PM. Ms. White said we have made a change to our visitor 

policy. Each patient is now allowed two visitors. The visitors must be over 18 and screened. The 

swabbing station hours have changed to Monday – Saturday from 9 AM to 2 PM. Ms. White 

reported we are maintaining the mandatory mask policy in our facility to protect everyone in the 

facility. 

 

Termination and Appeals Policy, Introductory Period 

 

Mr. Tardoni said placeholders remain on the agenda for the Termination and Appeals Policy and 

the Introductory Period Policy. 

 

Political Activity 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the Political Activity Policy is ready for consideration and passage by the Board. 

The motion to approve the policy as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Motion carried. 

 

Communication Systems 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the policy recognizes the nature of our devices. The policy was reviewed by I.T. 

and is ready for a vote by the Board. The motion to approve the policy as presented was made by 

Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

Rules of Practice Governing Hearings 

 

Mr. Jones said the placeholder remains on the agenda for the Rules of Practice Governing Hearings 

Policy. 

 

Medical Staff Rules and Regulations 

 

The motion to approve the medical staff rules and regulations was made by Mr. Tardoni; second 

by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

  

5/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, reviewed the requests to approve changes to 

the new medical staff bylaws and existing medical staff bylaws related to a physician member of 

credentials who was then elected as a medical staff officer. There was agreement the physician 

should not be able to vote if in both positions. Ms. Downs said the changes are essentially the same 

as existing and new but felt it was appropriate to make the change to both even though the new 

bylaws are not approved yet. 

 

Proposed Changes to Existing Bylaws: The motion to approve the changes to the existing medical 

staff bylaws as requested was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

Proposed Changes to New Bylaws: The motion to approve the changes to the new medical staff 

bylaws as requested was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Board Bylaws 

 

Dr. Sowada reminded everyone The Joint Commission recommends reviewing the board bylaws 

every 5 years. The last review was in 2017 so we are within our time. She said the bylaws must fit 

with Wyoming statutes. Dr. Sowada thanked Mr. Mathey, Ms. Richardson, Ms. Marianne Sanders-

Physician Recruitment and Retention Manager, and Ms. Suzan Campbell-In House Legal Counsel, 

for their work. She said there are two comment balloons with the decision to be left to the Board: 

1) number of years an officer can hold office, 2) number needed to approve changes. Mr. Jones 

and Mr. Kelsey said they felt a quorum of the Board should be the choice. 

 

Telecommuting 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the policy defines the difference between a job constantly remote vs. occasionally 

working from home. When the political activity issue was discussed at the last meeting there were 

some concerns regarding telecommuting so some language has been added to this policy. Mr. 

Tardoni asked for comments to be sent via e-mail to Mr. Tardoni and Ms. Campbell. 

 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care 

 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said we bring this annually for review and approval 

due to The Joint Commission requirements. She reported Ms. Robin Fife, Clinical Administration 

Assistant, helps with this every year to gather the information. There were some minor changes. 

The Plan was last approved by the Board in June 2020. Mr. Tardoni noted some changes that still 

needed to be made and said he didn’t think it had to come back under “New Business” again; just 

bring the changes back to the Board for action. 

 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board Policy 

 

Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation and Patient Safety, said this was brought 

forward from the report provided by our quality consultant. The Medical Executive Committee 

6/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

and Joint Conference Committee have given their approval. Following discussion, Ms. Jackson 

said she would add the terminology both the Board and the Medical Staff can request. Dr. Sowada 

recommends the first sentence say the Board of Trustees so we should be specific. Mr. Kelsey said 

the title should reflect the Board of Trustees, too. 

 

FOIA Public Records  

 

Ms. Campbell said we had a policy that did not have the appropriate forms so she completed an 

update. The forms are now available online. She said it is more standardized and easier for people 

to access. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson gave an update on the strategic plan. In the area of patient experience, we continue 

to train staff on person-centered workshops with the goal of 100% completion by June 30, 2021. 

We have trained over 500 people. We have started our communicating with empathy workshops. 

We are receiving good feedback. Ms. Richardson said we plan to finish those workshops by the 

end of the year. In the area of quality, we are still waiting for The Joint Commission to visit. They 

were due to visit by this past August. Covid has delayed their arrival. While we are waiting and 

preparing, we continue to round. Ms. Richardson reported we are working on quality measures. 

We are waiting for the final star rating. In the area of community and growth, we held a health fair 

March 5 and 6. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Lena Warren, Community Outreach Director, the 

Lab, and all the staff involved. We feel serving our community is our role. We continue to manage 

our construction projects. Ms. Richardson has a new format for her leadership meetings based on 

the committees of the Board. She is meeting with the senior leaders weekly to review key 

information. Ms. Richardson said we continue finetuning the Newhouse Project and developing 

the communication plan. Ms. Richardson will conduct a Town Hall on April 28 at 3 PM via Zoom. 

We are nearing the end of the 2018-2021 strategic plan. We are working on the next three-year 

plan and looking for dates to talk about it. We continue to work on the Cerner implementation. Go 

Live is still planned for October 2021. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone involved. Budget 

meetings are scheduled this week and next week. She thanked department leaders for being 

prepared to discuss their budgets in detail. The budget will be ready for the Board to approve at 

the June meeting. iPro is very informational and encouraged the Trustees to visit the site and get 

started. We continue to manage and limit in-person travel. We are doing all we can virtually. The 

Governance Institute is offering both virtual and in-person conferences for April and October. Ms. 

Richardson encouraged people to visit for drive-thru vaccine clinic April 9 and 10 and said we 

have 500 doses available. Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for their support, as well as the 

Commissioners, staff, and physicians for taking such good care of our patients. Mr. Jones thanked 

Ms. Richardson for her report. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones said if anything needs to brought forward, please discuss it at this time. 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything to add to the information in the packet. 

 

7/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said he did not have anything to add to the information in the packet.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY21-60 for 

$74,500 for an automated blood analysis system for the Lab was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by 

Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni said this is a budgeted item and CARES Act eligible. The motion carried. 

The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY21-61 for $54,5000 for an automated 

urinalysis system for the Lab was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni said 

this is a budgeted item and CARES Act eligible. Motion carried. The motion to approve capital 

expenditure request FY21-62 for $181,359.20 for the normal cycle replacement of desktop 

computers and laptop monitors was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni said 

this is budgeted and will be paid with MHSC funds. Motion carried. The motion to approve capital 

expenditure request FY21-63 for $519,278.83 for replacement of electrical routing switches 

throughout the Hospital was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni said this is 

budgeted but coming in over budget and will be paid with MHSC funds. Motion carried. The 

motion to approve capital expenditure request FY21-64 for $905,461 for air flow control systems 

in ducts around the Hospital was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni said this 

would be paid by County maintenance funds with the balance remaining paid by MHSC funds. 

Motion carried. The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY21-65 for $234,899.73 for 

limited supply transport monitors was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Tardoni 

said this is non-budgeted and will be paid by MHSC funds. Motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,088,233.43 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. 

Jones. Motion carried. 

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything to add to the information in the packet.  

 

Foundation 

 

Mr. Jones said we are adding a Foundation Board member and it will be the last one for a little 

while. We are working on the gift giving committee and looking at the possibility of a golf 

tournament. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the compliance effort has been affected by Covid. Roadblocks are removed and 

the audits are being done. He said information is in the packet. 

 

  

8/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said she did not have anything to add to the information in the packet. 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board will discuss in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said there is nothing to report.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting 

 

There were no comments. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Denker thanked the Board for their approvals earlier in the meeting. He said the General 

Medical Staff met the previous night and focused on the star rating and CMS measures. He said 

Ms. Richardson led the discussion and Ms. Jackson gave a great presentation. Dr. Denker said the 

Medical Staff are open to any criticism and suggestions. They want to do a good job. Mr. Jones 

thanked Dr. Denker for his report.   

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Dr. Sowada echoed Ms. Richardson’s comments on iPro. She said it is like having a Board 

encyclopedia at your fingerprints. There is good information for Board members. Each topic is 10-

30 minutes long and is concise, up-to-date, and easy to access. 

 

Commissioner Smith said the Commissioners took action the previous day on appointment to fill 

Mr. Mathey’s seat on the Board. Ms. Kandi Pendleton is the recommendation and can start working 

and training but cannot be appointed by statute until June. Mr. Jones said we appreciate the 

commissioners doing that. Mr. Jones said there is a lot to being a Board member at the Hospital. 

We appreciate Mr. Mathey’s suggestion to select as early as possible and acceptance by the Board 

of County Commissioners of that request. Mr. Jones said there was a great list of people interested 

and we know Ms. Pendleton will do a great job.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would take a ten-minute 

break and reconvene in executive session. The motion to go into executive session was made by 

Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

 

9/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:05 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve privileges for those health professionals discussed in executive session was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 
 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from March 9, 2021  

1. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Jacques Denker, Orthopaedic Surgery 

 Dr. Brytton Long, Family Medicine 

 Dr. David Dansie, Family Medicine 

 Dr. Jeffery Wheeler, OB/GYN 

2. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Lillian Khor, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Frank Rembert, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

3. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Brian Barton, Physician Assistant Family Medicine 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute contracts with doctors as discussed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

The motion to deny the claim presented in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 

5:07 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

10/250



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

April 26, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on April 26, 2021, at 5:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial 

Officer.  

 

Guests: Mr. Will Wheatley – Plan One, Mr. Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering.  

 

 

APPROVE CHANGE ORDER TO HVAC AND MEDICAL IMAGING PROJECTS 

 

Ms. Richardson said with our HVAC and S1 project, and the Medical Imaging project, we ran in 

to some issues with the building that is over 40 years old that results in some change order requests. 

When Mr. Blevins and Mr. Wheatley presented information to Ms. Tami Love and Ms. 

Richardson, we reviewed and asked for more detail so we made sure we were satisfied with the 

request and the presentation. Ms. Richardson reported we had some good conversations, decided 

we are satisfied with the explanations, and took the request to the Building and Grounds 

Committee. Mr. Kelsey and Dr. Sowada did an excellent job of reviewing line item by line item 

and in great detail. Mr. Blevins and Mr. Wheatly did a great job of explaining everything. Mr. 

Kelsey asked if the items were wants vs. needs and determined they were really needs. The 

Committee looked at the dollar amounts and at what would come out of CARES Act funds and 

what will come out of our own funds. Ms. Richardson said she recommends and the Building and 

Ground Committee recommends moving the change order request forward to the full Board with 

a do-pass recommendation. Mr. Tardoni said given the impact of Covid and the restrictions placed 

on us by governmental entities, there are things we have had to do fast. After the Covid time 

constraints are out of the way, he said we need to look back at where we are today. Mr. Tardoni 

said he feels the scope changes are justified. He said a caution to us when we get out of this 

enforced schedule put upon us by governmental entities, we may not be so liberal.  

 

The motion to approve Change Order Number 3 to the contract between the Hospital and 

Groathouse in the amount of $571,034 as outlined in the documents received was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

  

11/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 26, 2021 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their time and for meeting on short notice. There being no further 

business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:09 PM.   

 

       

 

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

 

12/250



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 9407506 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

I. Employees may work from home on an occasional basis only and only if pre-approved by their 
supervisor.  If the employee's supervisor does not pre-approve the employee working from home 
and the employee chooses to work home without such approval, the employee's supervisor will 
enter PTO for the day the employee worked at home.  Working from home is not the same as 
telecommuting and should only be used occasionally and not as a remote/telecommuting 
arrangement. 

TEXT 
I. Employees wishing to telecommute: 

A. Will apply to be a telecommuter through the Human Resource Department. 

B. If the application is approved by HR and the appropriate supervisor, the employee will be required to 
sign the Agreement to show his/her understanding of the terms and conditions of the MHSC 
Telecommuting Agreement. 

II. Application 

A. Employees who desire to be a telecommuter shall complete a Telecommuting Application and submit 
it to the HR Department. HR will process this application as any other employment application. 

An MHSC employee who successfully completes the process to become a telecommuter will perform his or 
her job duties from a “workspace”. For purpose of telecommuting, the term “workspace” is defined as the 
immediate area in which the computer is located. 

The employee agrees that once he/she is a telecommuter, he/she remains subject to the terms and conditions 
of MHSC employment pursuant to MHSC employee policies, job descriptions, procedures, guidelines, and 
instruction. 

A telecommuting employee is eligible for the same benefits, insurance and worker’s compensation coverage 
as other MHSC employees. All benefits and subject to change by MHSC. Eligibility for workers compensation 
is determined through the worker’s compensation application process. Contact employee health or HR for 
information. 

Telework -temporary or occasional work from home.  Telework is not telecommuting. 

 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 3

13/250

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

B. Employees who are allowed to telecommute will be subject to a the same introductory period length 
and conditions as other employees.  (See Employee Policies-Introductory Period). 

III. Agreement 

A. Employees who are approved for telecommute shall sign and abide by a Telecommuting Agreement. 
The agreement may require modification to fit individual telecommute-site circumstances. A copy of 
the Agreement will be retained in the employee's personnel file. 

B. Unless otherwise stated in the agreement, the supervisor, the HR Department, Senior Leadership or 
the employee may discontinue the arrangement, generally giving at least one-week notice. The 
parties may negotiate a longer notice to provide for a smooth transition. 

IV. General Provisions 

A. Communication. While telecommuting, the employee must be reachable by telephone, fax, pager, 
or e-mail during agreed-upon work hours. The employee and supervisor shall agree on expected 
turnaround time and the medium for responses. 

B. Conditions of Employment. The telecommuter’s conditions of employment shall remain the same 
as for non-telecommuting employees; wages, benefits and leave accrual will remain unchanged. 

C. Equipment. The telecommuter will provide his/her own workspace furniture, laptop computer and 
equipment. MHSC will provide VPN software for installation on the telecommuter’s personal 
computer. This will allow remote access to the hospital’s intranet. Any software provided by MHSC 
shall not be duplicated. 

D. Work Space. The telecommuter may hold business visits or meetings with professional colleagues 
or the public by electronic means (ZOOM, Microsoft Teams, etc) but may not have in person 
meetings or in-person business visits at the workspace. Meetings with other MHSC staff at the 
workspace will not be permitted unless approved in advance by the employee's supervisor. 

E. Hours of Work. The telecommuter will have specific available hours and telephone accessibility with 
the department and supervisor. The agreed upon work schedule shall comply with FLSA regulations. 
Overtime work for a non-exempt employee must be pre-approved by the supervisor. Unapproved 
overtime work will lead to corrective action against the telecommuter. Excessive unavailability of the 
telecommuter will lead to corrective action as per Exempt or Non-Exempt Employee Policies. 

F. Incidental Costs. Unless otherwise stated in the Telecommute Agreement, all incidental costs of 
telecommuting, such as residential utility costs, Internet costs, phone costs or cleaning services, are 
the responsibility of the telecommuter. 

G. Inclement weather. If there is an emergency at the workspace, such as a power outage, the 
telecommuter will notify his/her supervisor as soon as possible. The telecommuter may be 
reassigned to the Hospital or an alternate work-site. 

H. Intellectual Property. Products, documents, and records developed while telecommuting are the 
property of MHSC and will not be shared with others at the workspace. This includes any software 
provided to the employee such as VPN, or HIPAA compliant software. 

I. Network. MHSC will provide instructions on the installation and use of VPN software to allow secure 
connectivity to MHSC. 

J. Performance & Evaluations. The supervisor and telecommuter will formulate objectives, expected 
results, and job duty evaluation the same as is required for all MHSC employees. The supervisor will 
monitor and evaluate performance by relying more heavily on work results rather than direct 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 3

14/250



DRAFT

observation. The supervisor and telecommuting employee will meet, either by phone or in person, at 
regular intervals to review the employee's work performance. 

K. Policies. All MHSC policies, rules and practices shall apply to the telecommuter including all 
employee policies, HIPAA, confidentiality, IT policies and computer usage policies. Failure to follow 
MHSC policies, rules and procedures may result in termination of the telecommuting arrangement 
and/or disciplinary action. Of utmost importance is compliance with MHSC confidentiality and HIPAA 
policies and requirements. 

L. Political Activity- The Hospital's Political Activity Employee Policy applies to employees who 
are telecommuters and corrective action will be pursued if a telecommuting employee uses 
Hospital equipment or Hospitial software for political activity or in some other manner 
violates the Political Activity Policy while telecommuting. 

M.  Retention of Data. Products, documents, data and records that are used, developed, or revised 
while telecommuting shall be retained/maintained on MHSC equipment only and not the employee’s 
personal computer. 

N. Security. Security of records, files and other documents shall be maintained by the telecommuter at 
the same level as expected in the hospital. Confidential and PHI data shall not be shared with 
anyone in any format. Sharing of PHI with anyone other than those with approved access will result 
in immediate corrective action. 

Approved: HR Committee 2/20, Senior Leadership 2/20 

REFERENCES 

Attachments 

803058 - TELECOMMUTING Application 3.pdf 

 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-TELECOMMUTING. Retrieved 03/16/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9407506/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 3

15/250



Cover Letter Regarding Revision of Board of Trustees Bylaws 

 

Background The last time the Board Bylaws were revised was 2017. This revision was approved 

at the Board meeting of August 1, 2017. This revision can be found in the Board portal under 

Documents-Library-Bylaws. Because it’s recommended that Bylaws are reviewed and revised 

every three to five years, the Governance Committee, with the assistance of Suzan Campbell 

and Marianne Sanders, revised the 2017 Bylaws. The intent was to bring the Bylaws up to date 

and assure they comply with Wyoming State statutes and regulatory requirements. 

These revised Bylaws were presented for a “first read” to the Board at the April, 2021, Board of 

Trustees meeting. At the April meeting, it was decided that any amendment or revision to the 

Bylaws requires a majority vote of the full board. Other comments and concerns were to be 

submitted to the Governance Committee prior to the May meeting. 

Current Status 

1. We have received comments from Marty:  
Executive Sessions 
As you may know, the Wyoming Legislature amended Wyoming Statute 16-4-405 this 

year to add the following provision in Executive Sessions:  “To consider, discuss and 

conduct safety and security planning that, if disclosed, would pose a threat to the safety 

of life or property.” 

 

I suggest that for our By-Laws we add this as “H” and move the current “H” to “I”. In 

Bylaws, under Executive Session state statute reference added in green. P 7. 

 

Chapter XIII Amendments and Alterations 
At the meeting, we briefly discussed this matter. The proposed wording, (which Barbara 

brought up for discussion) provides that a “majority of a quorum” can amend the By-

Laws. As worded, this means that, conceivably, only two Board members can effect 

changes to the By-Laws. 

 

Earlier in the By-Laws, it states that: “No action of the Board shall be valid unless such 

action has been approved by a quorum of the Board.” 

 

So my two (closely related) questions are legal ones for Geoff: (1) Under Wyoming law, 

can a majority of a “minimum” quorum act to pass a motion? (2) As it is stated above in 

the By-Laws, “approved by a quorum of the Board”...does this mean that for a minimum 

quorum (in our case 3 trustees)...the motion must be approved by all 3 trustees of the 

minimum quorum present at a meeting? Rewording of the Bylaws to show that a majority 

vote of the board is needed to amend or revise Bylaws is in green on p 16. 

 

 

 

16/250



2. Questions the Governance Committee, placed as comment balloons, that are still 

outstanding include. Page numbers for the comment balloons are cited for easy 

reference. 

a. Appointment term, i.e. can trustees who are appointed to complete someone 

else’s term can then succeed themselves for two additional terms? p 2. 

b. Does the language for P p 5 reflect the Board’s wishes? 

c. Should a Trustee shall hold the same office for more than three (3) consecutive 

terms, or more than two (2) consecutive terms? p 8. 

d. To approve an action item, does this require a majority of the full board of the 

majority of a quorum? p 9 

Recommendation Richard Mathey, Chairperson of the Governance Committee, will facilitate 

discussion regarding the above outstanding questions and other questions coming before the 

Board, as well as the revised Bylaws in general, with the expectation that all questions will be 

answered and the Bylaws passed either during the May or June meeting.   

 

17/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           1 

 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Board of Trustees 

Bylaws 

 
 

CHAPTER I: DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 1.  Authority 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) was established pursuant to Wyoming 
Statutes Sections 1-18-101 et seq. (2009). Accordingly, it is a county public hospital that 
operates and acts exclusively for tax-exempt purposes. 

Section 2.  Definitions 

A. The ANNUAL MEETING is the first Wednesday in July. 
B. The BOARD OF TRUSTEES (Board) of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is 

as defined in Chapter III, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
C. The BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (Commissioners) shall mean the board of duly 

qualified elected officials in Sweetwater County, Wyoming as provided in Wyo. Stat.§ 18-
3-501 (2009) that has the authority and duty to appoint members of the Board of the 
Hospital according to Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-102 (2009). 

D. The CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) is as defined in Chapter V, Section 1, of these Bylaws. 
E. The FISCAL YEAR commences on July 1 and concludes on June 30 of the following calendar 

year. 
F. The HOSPITAL shall mean Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and all services and 

facilities operated under its license. 
G. The MEDICAL STAFF refers to licensed practitioners who attend to patients in the Hospital. 

Members include physicians and non-physician providers. 
H. A TRUSTEE is a member of the Board. 

 
 
 

18/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           2 

 

 
 

CHAPTER II: LEGAL STRUCTURE  
 
Section 1.  Legal Structure 

The Board is appointed by the Commissioners and is constituted as a body corporate and with 
perpetual existence with the duty to erect, manage, operate and control the Hospital pursuant 
to Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-101 et seq. (2009). 
 
Section 2.  Overall Statements 
The Board has the authority and duty to approve mission, values and vision statements, and the strategic 
plans for the Hospital, as well as to provide oversight of the CEO. 

 
 

CHAPTER III: GOVERNING BODY 

Section 1.  Appointment and Term 

A non-partisan board of at least five (5) and no more than eleven (11) residents of Sweetwater 
County shall be appointed by the Commissioners as provided in Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-102, 18-8-104 
(2009). Hospital employees cannot be appointed to the Board. Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-102 (2009). The 
Board shall always consist of an odd number of Trustees.   

Trustees are appointed for a five (5) year term. The term shall begin on the first Monday of July 
and end on the first Monday of July of the fifth year. Trustees may be eligible for reappointment 
by the Commissioners to succeed themselves for one (1) additional term. Trustees who are 
appointed to fill a vacancy are eligible to succeed themselves for two (2) additional terms.  

The Board, as the Hospital’s governing body, has the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of 
the Hospital as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for any 
actions, inactions, omissions, or procedures of the Board. Wyo. Stat. § 18-8-104 (2009). 

Section 2.  Resignation  

A Trustee may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the 
Commissioners and a copy to the President of the Board. The resignation shall be effective when 
stated, or if not stated, upon presentation to the President of the Board. Any vacancies shall be 
filled by appointments made by the Commissioners. 

 

19/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           3 

 

 

Section 3. Removal 

A Trustee may be removed from the Board by the Commissioners. The Board may recommend 
the removal of a disruptive Board member. 
 
Section 4. Seal  

The Board shall have a seal on which shall be engraved the name of the Hospital.  This seal shall 
be kept by the Hospital’s CEO and used in authentication of acts of the Board and the Hospital 
when such authentication is required or necessary.    
 
Section 5.  Policies 

The Board shall create and establish such Board policies as it shall deem necessary and 
appropriate.  The Board shall also create and approve a process for the review of Hospital wide 
policies over which the Board has oversight obligations.  

Section 6. Meeting Records 

The minutes of all Board meetings shall be available for public inspection at the Hospital’s 
administrative office and on the Hospital’s website, in accordance with applicable laws. 

Section 7.  Powers and General Duties of the Board of Trustees 

The Wyoming Statutes, providing for the creation of memorial hospitals (Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-101 
et seq. 2009), vest in the Board the sole duty to erect, manage and control the Hospital and all 
property, affairs, and funds received for the benefit of the Hospital.  Accordingly, the Board shall 
have the power and authority to do and perform all acts, functions, and things necessary, proper, 
and consistent with these Bylaws, Laws of the United States, and the Laws of the State of 
Wyoming to affect the purposes for which the Hospital has been created. 

Consistent therewith, the powers and duties of the Board, as the governing body, shall generally 
include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

A. Organizing itself as provided in these Bylaws (See Chapter IV) 
B. Monitoring compliance with federal, state and local laws 
C. Providing direction and exercising general oversight over the affairs of the Hospital to 

ensure fulfillment of its mission 

20/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           4 

 

D. Monitoring that all applicable accreditations and licenses are obtained and maintained as 
are appropriate and necessary to effectuate the Hospital’s purpose 

E. Providing for the establishment of a duly licensed and qualified Medical Staff to carry out 
the Hospital’s obligations and objectives for the care of the sick and infirm of the Hospital 
(See Chapter VII) 

F. Overseeing the ongoing implementation, maintenance, and monitoring of the standards 
of safe, quality, and efficient medical care in accordance with all applicable laws and 
accrediting bodies 

G. Appointing and fixing compensation and terms of office for a properly qualified CEO, who 
shall be responsible to the Board for managing the Hospital and who shall carry out the 
delegated authority of the Board. Consistent with such appointment, the Board shall 
periodically review and evaluate the performance of such officer 

H. Reviewing and approving an annual operating and annual and long-term capital budgets 
for the Hospital. The budget shall be for the Hospital’s fiscal year, which commences on 
July 1 and concludes June 30 of the following calendar year. The budget shall be presented 
to the Commissioners in June, prior to commencement of the fiscal year 

I. Monitoring that the Hospital maintains a uniform system of accounting in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and federal hospital regulations 

J. Retaining an independent auditor consistent with applicable laws and best practices to 
examine the Hospital’s financial statements and provide a written report that contains an 
opinion as to whether the financial statements are fairly stated and comply in all material 
respects to the applicable audit standards 

K. Monitoring that the Hospital has an overall institutional plan that meets the conditions of 
the Medicare Conditions of Participation 

L. Receiving and owning personal property, and such real property as is authorized by 
Wyoming Statutes 

M. Making, altering, revoking, amending, executing and enforcing such Bylaws of the 
Hospital and the Medical Staff as the Board determines will promote the Hospital’s best 
interest in accordance with the laws and the Hospital’s mission 

N. Retaining independent counsel 
O. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of contracts entered into by 

the Hospital that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, 
scope and length of term for each contract and 2) that prior to entering into any contract 
or affiliation agreement that must be approved by the Commissioners, the Board obtains 
the Commissioners’ approval 

21/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           5 

 

P. Having a policy and procedure for the approval and oversight of clinical service contracts 
that assures 1) the maintenance of a data base that includes the nature, scope and length 
of term for each contract, 2) evidence of physician involvement in the selection of the 
contractor, and 3) an annual evaluation showing the contractor meets quality standards 

Q. Procuring and entering into contracts for adequate and prudent insurance necessary and 
desirable for the conduct and operation of the Hospital 

R. Making provision for a Hospital Auxiliary and a non-profit Foundation, as the needs may 
arise. The Board shall require that Bylaws be established and shall approve such Bylaws, 
and any amendments thereof, for the Auxiliary and Foundation 

S. Reporting to and making recommendations to the Commissioners as necessary and 
appropriate, including the submission of the Hospital’s annual budget as required 

T. Periodically reviewing and approving a general employee wage/compensation plan to 
assure an adequate work force 

U. Monitoring that all Board members understand and fulfill their responsibilities as Trustees 
of the Hospital, and providing for periodic evaluation of the Board’s performance. New 
members of the Board shall participate in a Hospital Trustee orientation program and all 
members are encouraged to participate in available education programs 

V. Complying with state statutes for conducting open (public) meetings  
W. Providing for a systematic and effective mechanism for communication among the 

Medical Staff, the Board, and the CEO 
X. Assessing the health care needs of the community, the services provided by the Hospital, 

and the number of practitioners providing those services.  In that regard, the Board 
retains the authority to restrict or expand the services offered by the Hospital, to restrict 
or expand the number of employed, licensed practitioners providing services in a given 
specialty based on its evaluation, and to determine that an exclusive contract is or is not 
necessary for a specific specialty or service 

Y. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing rules of conduct and behavior for the 
members of the Medical Staff, and procedures for monitoring compliance with such rules 

Z. Considering, and if appropriate, establishing through Board policy, such economic conflict 
of interest requirements for membership on the Hospital Medical Staff as deemed to be 
in the best interest of the Hospital 

AA. As the Hospital’s governing body, having the sole legal responsibility for the conduct of 
the Hospital as an institution. No individual member of the Board is personally liable for 
any action or procedure of the board  
 

 
CHAPTER IV: ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

22/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           6 

 

Section 1.  Meetings 

Any assembly of at least a quorum of the Board that has been called by proper authority for the 
purpose of discussion, deliberation, presentation of information, or taking action regarding 
public business is a public meeting, open to the public at all times, except as otherwise provided. 

A. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on Hospital premises on the first Wednesday 
of each month, unless the Board sets the regular meeting for an upcoming month on a 
different date and/or location.  The annual meeting of the Hospital governing body shall 
be the July meeting.  The September Board meeting shall be in Green River.  Any meeting 
that is not a regular meeting is a special meeting.  

B. Special meetings may be called by the presiding officer of the Board by giving verbal, 
electronic, or written notice of the meeting to each member of the governing body and 
to each newspaper of general circulation, radio, and television station requesting the 
notice.  The notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business 
to be transacted and shall be issued at least eight (8) hours prior to the commencement 
of the meeting.  No other business, other than noticed, shall be considered at a special 
meeting. 

C. Notice of special meetings and changes to the time or place of regular meetings shall be 
announced during the course of regular meetings and/or given to persons who have 
requested notice, as well as each newspaper of general circulation, radio and television 
stations in Sweetwater County.  A request for notice shall be in writing and on file with 
Hospital.  The request for notice may be made for all future meetings for which notice is 
required. 

D. The Board may recess any regular or special meeting to a place and time specified in an 
order of recess.  A copy of the order of recess shall be conspicuously posted on or near 
the door of the place where the meeting or recessed meeting was held. In the case of a 
digital meeting, a digital notice will be sent to all participants, as well as to persons who 
have requested notice. 

E. The Board may hold an emergency meeting on matters of serious, immediate concern to 
take temporary action without notice.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to offer public 
notice.  All action at an emergency meeting is of a temporary nature, and in order to 
become permanent shall be reconsidered and acted upon at an open, public meeting 
within forty-eight (48) hours, excluding weekends and holidays, unless the event 
constituting the emergency continues to exist after forty-eight (48) hours.  In such case 
the Board may reconsider and act upon the temporary action at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the agency, but in no event later than thirty (30) days from the date 
of the emergency action.   Wyo. Stat. § 16-4-404(d) (2009). 

F. The Board may hold executive sessions, not open to the public, as provided for by law. 

23/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           7 

 

G. All meetings of the Board shall comply with the Wyoming Open Meetings Act, Wyo. Stat. 
§§ 16-4-401 to 16-4-407 (2009). 

H. Any member of the Board who attends, or remains at a meeting, knowing the meeting is 
in violation of the Wyoming Public Meetings Act Wyo. Stat. §§ 16-4-401 through 16-4-410 
(2009) shall be liable under Wyo. Stat. § 16-4-408 (2009), unless minutes were taken 
during the meeting and the parts thereof recording the member’s objections are made 
public or at the next regular public meeting the member objects to the meeting where 
the violation occurred and ask that the objection be recorded in the minutes. 

I. Day-to-day administrative activities of the Hospital shall not be subject to the above 
notice requirements. 

Section 2.  Executive Session 
 
The Board may hold executive sessions not open to the public under the following circumstances: 

A. With the attorney general, county attorney, district attorney, city attorney, sheriff, chief 
of police or their respective deputies, or other officers of the law, to consider matters 
posing a threat to the security of public or private property, or a threat to the public’s 
right of access, Wyo. Stat. § 16-4-405. 

B. To consider the appointment, employment, right to practice or dismissal of a public 
officer, professional person or employee, or to hear complaints or charges brought 
against an employee, professional person or officer, unless the employee, professional 
person or officer requests a public hearing.  The Board may exclude from any public or 
private hearing during the examination of a witness, any or all other witnesses in the 
matter being investigated.  Following the hearing or executive session, the Board may 
deliberate on its decision in executive session. 

C. To consider matters concerning litigation to which the Board is a party or proposed 
litigation to which the Board may be a party. 

D. To consider the selection of a site or the purchase of real estate when the publicity 
regarding the consideration would cause a likelihood of an increase in price. 

E. To consider the acceptance of gifts, donations and bequests that the donor has 
requested in writing be kept confidential. 

F. To consider or receive any information classified as confidential or proprietary by law. 
G. To consider accepting or tendering offers concerning wages, salaries, benefits and terms 

of employment during all negotiations. 
H. To consider any other matter authorized by law to be considered in an executive session. 

24/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           8 

 

Minutes shall be maintained of any executive session. These minutes shall show time, members 
present, and subjects considered. No action shall be taken in executive session. Any actions taken 
in connection with executive session shall be taken in the regular session and recorded in the 
minutes of the regular session. Except for those parts of minutes of an executive session 
reflecting a members’ objection to the executive session as being a violation of this act, minutes 
and proceedings of executive session shall be confidential and produced only in response to a 
valid court order.  

 

Section 3.  Officers 

Officers elected are President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. Any Board member 
may be considered eligible to be an officer of the Board. Board officers shall be elected at the 
July meeting of the Board.   Officers’ terms are from the annual meeting to annual meeting of 
the following year. No Trustee shall hold the same office for more than three (3) consecutive 
terms. When completing another officer’s term, the Trustee is still eligible for three (3) 
consecutive terms.  

Section 4.  Duties of Officers 

A. The President shall prepare the agenda for all meetings of the Board in consultation with 
the CEO. The President shall call and preside at all meetings of the Board. With the 
exception of the Finance & Audit Committee, the President shall appoint all members of 
the Board’s standing committees who are not designated in the committee charters. With 
the exception of the chairperson of the Finance & Audit Committee, who is the Treasurer, 
the President shall also appoint the chairperson of each standing committee and is an ex 
officio member of all board committees.  The President shall act for the Board as a whole 
only with the Board’s authorization. 

B. The Vice President shall, in the absence of the President, or in the event of his/her death, 
inability, or refusal to act, perform the duties of President, and when so acting, shall have 
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice 
President shall also perform such executive duties as may be delegated to him/her by the 
President of the Board. 

C.   The Secretary, or his/her designee, shall act as secretary of the Board and shall act as 
custodian of all records and reports of the Board. The Secretary’s designee shall be 
responsible for recording and keeping all minutes and transactions of all Board meetings. 

D. The Treasurer shall be the chair of the Finance & Audit Committee; have signing authority 
on behalf of the Board for financial matters; ensure audited financial statements are 

25/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           9 

 

presented to the Board on an annual basis; and manage, with the Finance & Audit 
Committee, the Board’s review of, and action related to, the Board’s financial 
responsibilities.  

  
Section 5.  Quorum 

 A quorum of the Board consists of a majority of the Trustees in attendance at the time the 
meeting is called to order. No action of the Board shall be valid unless such action has been 
approved by a quorum of the Board.  Proxy voting shall not be permitted. Any Trustee may 
participate in any meeting of the Board or Board committee by means of digital technology 
whereby all members participating in such meeting can hear one another for the entire 
discussion of the matter(s) to be voted upon.  Such participation shall constitute attendance in 
person for all purposes, including but not limited to establishing a quorum. 

Section 6. Conflict of Interest 

The Board shall adopt and maintain a comprehensive Conflict of Interest Policy. Upon taking the 
Oath of Office, each Trustee shall be required to agree in writing to adhere to the terms of the 
policy and to annually affirm in writing his/her agreement to adhere to the policy. The Board shall 
have the right to adjudicate any alleged violations of the policy and determine the disciplinary or 
corrective measures required. The Board will also report any violations and subsequent 
disciplinary or corrective measures to the Commissioners. 

Section 7.  Voting 

A. Each Trustee shall be entitled to one vote on any matter properly submitted to the Board 
for vote.  Voting shall be in person or by digital technology, and there shall be no voting 
by proxy. 

B.   If a Trustee has a conflict of interest, he/she may not participate in the discussion nor vote 
on the issue for which he/she has declared a conflict.  

C. The President of the Board shall not be required to vote except when necessary in case 
of a tie vote.  The President shall, however, have the privilege to vote when he/she so 
desires. 

D. If any Trustee(s) in the minority on any question wishes to present a written explanation 
of his/her position to the Secretary, such explanation shall be filed with the permanent 
records of the Board. 

 
Section 8. Committees  

26/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           10 

 

A. All committee meetings will be held on the Hospital premises, unless otherwise indicated 
in the call.   

B. Minutes from standing committee meetings will be provided to the Board at the Board 
meeting following the committee meeting. 

C. Committees may be standing committees or special committees. 
D. Standing committee members shall be appointed by the President. Two Trustees shall be 

appointed to each standing committee. Their tenure will run from annual meeting to the 
following annual meeting, or until a successor is named, whichever last occurs. Standing 
committees of the Board shall be Building & Grounds, Compliance, Executive Oversight 
and Compensation, Finance & Audit, Governance, Human Resources, Joint Conference, 
and Quality. The charge of all standing Committees will be stated in the committee 
charters as adopted by the Board. 

E. Special committees will be appointed by the President on the approval of the Board for 
such special tasks as circumstances warrant. The special committees shall limit their 
activities to the accomplishment of the task for which they were created or appointed and 
shall have no power to act except as specifically conferred by the Board. Special 
committees shall be dissolved upon completion of their task. 
 

CHAPTER V:  HOSPITAL CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 Section 1. Appointment  

 The CEO shall be appointed by the Board and be responsible only to the Board and shall be given 
the necessary authority and be held responsible for the administration of the Hospital in all its 
activities, subject only to these bylaws and such policies as may be adopted and such orders as 
may be issued by the Board. The CEO is responsible for investigating and resolving all complaints 
and allegations concerning the conduct of the Hospital and its staff, and the Board is responsible 
for investigating and resolving all reported complaints and allegations concerning the conduct 
of the CEO.  

Section 2. Authority 

Within the framework of broad objectives and policies developed and approved by the Board, 
the CEO shall plan, direct, coordinate and evaluate all activities of the Hospital. The CEO shall 
report to the Board at its regular monthly meeting. Official communication with the Board 
between regular monthly meetings shall be through the President of the Board. This shall not be 
interpreted to prohibit a Board member and the CEO from communicating directly with each 
other.  

27/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           11 

 

     Section 3. Duties 

 The CEO is charged with fulfilling the duties as stated in his/her job description and with 
performing these duties in according with his/her employment agreement and in full 
compliance with the Hospital Bylaws. 

 
 
 

CHAPTER VI:  FISCAL CONTROL 
 

 Section 1. Guidelines and Audits 

A. The Chart of Accounts for Hospitals prescribed by the American Hospital Association, with 
modification as needed, the laws of the State of Wyoming, and Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles shall be followed in recording and accounting for financial 
transactions of the Hospital. 

B. The Board shall review and approve an annual budget for the operation of the Hospital in 
a format acceptable to the Director of the Wyoming Department of Audit. The budget 
shall require that 1) businesslike methods are employed in the expenditure of and 
accounting for all monies, 2) a long-term capital expenditure plan is included and 3) the 
implementation of the plan is monitored. The annual budget shall be presented to the 
Commissioners in June, prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year.  

C. The financial records and financial procedures of the Hospital shall be audited annually 
by an independent, certified public accountant and/or firm. Prior to the audit, Trustees 
who are members of the Finance & Audit Committee may meet with the auditors, 
independent of management, to review annual audit and associated management letter. 
The results of this annual audit shall be presented to the Finance & Audit Committee and 
to the Board at the meetings immediately following the completion of the audit report.  

Section 2. Execution of Instruments 

A. Unless otherwise specifically determined by the Board, or required by law, formal 
contracts of the Hospital, promissory notes, deeds of trust, mortgages or other evidences 
of indebtedness of the Hospital shall be executed, signed or endorsed by the CEO or other 
officers of the Hospital as provided in Board policy. 

B. There are certain transactions of the Board that require the Commissioners approval as 
stated in the Wyo. Stat. §§ 18-8-108 and 18-8-301 (2009). 

28/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           12 

 

C. The CEO has the authority to endorse checks made to the Hospital for deposit in any of 
its duly authorized depositories, without countersignature. This authority may be 
delegated by the CEO to other officer(s) of the Hospital to whom the Board, by policy, has 
approved such power. 

D. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Hospital, shall be signed or 
endorsed by the CEO or other officer(s) to whom the Board, by policy, has approved such 
power. 

 
Chapter VII-MEDICAL STAFF  

 
Section 1.  Establishment of Medical Staff 
The Board, by this Chapter VII, and by approving the Bylaws of the Medical Staff, which are 
incorporated into these Bylaws by this reference, hereby establishes and sets forth the 
organizational structure of the Medical Staff and its relationship to the Board and to the 
Hospital administration. 
 
In the event of any conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Medical Staff Bylaws, 
the provisions of these Bylaws shall supersede any conflicting provisions of the Medical Staff 
Bylaws provided, however, that every effort shall be made to interpret these Bylaws and the 
Medical Staff Bylaws as being consistent with one another. In the event of any such conflict, it 
shall be referred to the Joint Conference Committee. 
 
The relationship between the Medical Staff and the Hospital is the following: 

A. The Medical Staff makes recommendations to the Board regarding privileges and 
credentials, which the Board considers in accepting credentials and granting privileges. 

B. Hospital privileges are in the nature of a license to use the Hospital facilities for the 
treatment of patients. 

C. The Medical Staff is an advisor to the Board concerning the clinical quality and safety of 
patient care.  

D. The Medical Staff Bylaws serve as a framework for self-governance of Medical Staff 
activities, but do not suggest that the Medical Staff is a separate entity; the Medical Staff 
is a part of the Hospital.  
  

Section 2.  Responsibilities of the Medical Staff 
 

29/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           13 

 

A. The Board shall ensure that the Medical Staff is organized into a responsible 
administrative unit. The Medical Staff shall adopt Bylaws subject to Chapter 7, Section 3, 
of these Bylaws. The Medical Staff shall periodically review its Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and policies to ensure consistency with current standards of care; 
consistency with Hospital policies; compliance with the requirements of The Joint 
Commission and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid; and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. Acting in its role as advisor to the Board in matters requiring clinical 
expertise, the Medical Staff shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 
Board concerning initial staff appointments, reappointments and the granting, 
termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges for Medical Staff members. The 
Medical Staff shall be responsible for the submission of regular reports on the review 
processes carried out by the Medical Staff in accordance with the requirements of the 
Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations. 

B. The Board shall approve the Medical Staff’s Bylaws and act on recommendations 
concerning Medical Staff appointments, reappointments, terminations of appointments, 
and the granting, termination, curtailment or revision of clinical privileges within the time 
specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 
 

 
Section 3.  Medical Staff Bylaws  
 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall set forth the Medical Staff’s organization and government, 
including mechanisms for the following: appointment and reappointment; the granting, 
termination, curtailment and revision of clinical privileges; liaison between the Board and the 
Medical Staff; and the quality assurance/improvement, peer review and other responsibilities 
of the Medical Staff as required by The Joint Commission, the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid, and applicable laws. 
 
The Medical Staff Bylaws shall be drafted and adopted by the Medical Staff and then presented 
to the Board for approval. The ultimate authority to adopt or amend the Medical Staff Bylaws 
shall be vested in the Board. 
 
Section 4.  Medical Staff Communication with the Board of Directors and Hospital 
Administration  
 
There shall be effective and systematic liaison and communication between the Board, the 
Medical Staff, and the Hospital administration. The primary means of collaboration and 
communication shall be the Joint Conference Committee. In addition, the Medical Staff shall 

30/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           14 

 

participate in the regular Board meetings by the attendance of the Chief of Staff. All members of 
the Medical Staff are welcome at all Board meetings. 
 
Section 5.  Medical Staff Recommendations 
 
The Medical Staff, as provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws, shall make recommendations to the 
Board for the Board’s approval, which shall include recommendations pertaining to the following: 
 

A. The structure of the Medical Staff 
B. The mechanism used to review credentials and to delineate individual clinical privileges 
C. Individual Medical Staff membership 
D. Specific delineated clinical privileges for each individual exercising such privileges 
E. The organization of the quality and safety activities of the Medical Staff and the Hospital 

as well as the mechanisms used to conduct, evaluate, and revise such activities 
F. Clinical service contracts, as well as mechanisms to monitor and evaluate the quality and 

safety of the deliverables to be provided under said contracts 
G. The mechanism by which membership on the Medical Staff and clinical privileges may be 

suspended, curtailed or terminated 
H. The mechanism for fair hearings  
 

Section 6.  Liability Insurance 
 
Members of the Medical Staff shall annually provide written proof of liability insurance 
(malpractice insurance) for an amount to be determined by the Board. Furthermore, each 
member of the Medical Staff shall notify the Hospital within two (2) business days of receiving 
notification of cancellation of liability insurance. Noncompliance with this requirement is cause 
for immediate revocation of staff membership and clinical privileges. 
 
 

CHAPTER VIII:  DISCRIMINATION 

Nondiscrimination Policy 

 No discrimination because of sex, race, creed, religion, national origin, disability, age, ancestry, 
pregnancy, gender identity, or sexual orientation shall be allowed in the admission and treatment 
of patients, appointments or privileges of Medical Staff members, employment of personnel, or 
the conduct of other business of the Hospital. 

 
 

31/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           15 

 

CHAPTER IX: PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
Official Positions 
The Board acts as a body. Policy and statement of official positions shall be made only after 
Trustees’ concurrence as indicated by a majority vote. All such statements shall be issued by the 
President through the office of the CEO. 

 
 

CHAPTER X:  GIFTS AND BEQUESTS 
Acceptance Policy 

The Board may receive, through the Foundation, the donations of real estate, money or other 
property in the aid of the establishment of the Hospital or for the construction of additions or 
provision of equipment, furniture, or facilities. The Board shall permit any donor furnishing the 
means for the construction of any individual portion of the Hospital, or for equipping and 
especially endowing any service or room therein, to name the same in memory of any person 
chosen by the donor and shall observe the conditions accompanying every gift that is not in 
violation of Wyoming Law and is consistent with the proper management and objectives of the 
Hospital. The Board may consult with the Hospital’s Foundation prior to the receipt of such 
donations. 

 
CHAPTER XI:  VOLUNTEER GROUPS  

 
Section 1. Purpose  
All volunteer groups, such as the Sweetwater County Memorial Hospital Auxiliary Inc., shall 
serve without remuneration, with their prime purpose being the support and betterment of the 
Hospital and its services. 

Section 2. Governance 

All volunteer groups are authorized to establish a mechanism for governing themselves. Subject 
to the approval of the Board, all volunteer groups may, for governance purposes, adopt Bylaws, 
rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. None of these governance mechanisms shall 
supersede or take priority over these Bylaws.  

Section 3. Reports 

Actions of volunteer groups shall be subject to review by the Board through the CEO and through 
an annual report of their activities. 
 

32/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           16 

 

 
Chapter XII INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

Indemnification and Directors and Officers Insurance  
 
The Hospital shall indemnify a Trustee who was wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, 
in the defense of any proceeding to which the Trustee was a party because he/she is or was a 
Trustee against reasonable expenses actually incurred by the Trustee in connection with a 
proceeding. The Hospital shall also advance expenses to the Trustee as outlined in Wyo. Stat. 
§17-19-853 (2009). 
 
The Hospital shall purchase and maintain directors and officers insurance on behalf of an 
individual who is or was a Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital against liability 
asserted against or incurred by him/her in that capacity or arising from his/her status as a 
Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the Hospital whether or not the Hospital would have 
power to indemnify the person against same liability. Wyo. Stat. §17-19-857 (2009). 

 
CHAPTER XIII:  AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS 

 
Section 1. Requirements 
 
Amendments and alterations to the Bylaws shall require a majority vote of a quorum of the 
Trustees present at any regular or special meeting, provided the proposals for changes have been 
furnished in writing to each Trustee at least five (5) days prior to the meeting. 
 
Amendments and alterations to the Bylaws shall require a majority vote of the full Board present 
at any regular or special meeting, provided the proposals for change have been furnished in 
writing to each Trustee at least five (5) days prior to the meeting. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date 
These Bylaws become effective immediately upon their acceptance and adoption and supersede 
all previously adopted Bylaws. 

 

ACCEPTANCE AND ADOPTION 
 

33/250



Revised 2004; 2005; 2007; 2010 
2017; 08/01/2018 
XX/XX/2021 

             
           17 

 

The foregoing Bylaws of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board of Trustees are hereby 
accepted and adopted as of this ___day of August, 2018.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

34/250



35/250



36/250



37/250



38/250



39/250



40/250



41/250



42/250



43/250



44/250



45/250



46/250



47/250



48/250



49/250



50/250



51/250



52/250



53/250



54/250



55/250



56/250



57/250



58/250



59/250



60/250



61/250



62/250



63/250



64/250



65/250



66/250



67/250



68/250



69/250



70/250



71/250



72/250



73/250



74/250



75/250



76/250



77/250



78/250



79/250



80/250



81/250



82/250



83/250



84/250



85/250



86/250



87/250



88/250



89/250



90/250



91/250



92/250



93/250



94/250



95/250



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 9325052 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: 2 years after approval 
Document Area: Medical Staff 
Reg. Standards: CMS Appedix A 482.12(a) (10), 

A-0053 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with 
the Hospital Board of Trustees 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 
• To establish process for periodic direct consultation with the Hospital Board of Trustees by designated 

Medical Staff leader on matters related to quality of medical care provided to patients of the hospital in 
accordance with CMS §482.12(a) (10), A-0053 

SCOPE: 
• This policy applies to the Medical Staff and Board of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

DEFINITIONS: 
• “Direct consultation” means that the Board meets with the leader(s) of the Medical Staff, or his/her 

designee(s) either face-to-face or via a telecommunications system permitting immediate, synchronous 
communication. 
 

• “Designee” means an individual recognized by the hospital as a Medical Staff leader. 

POLICY: 
• Approach 

◦ Direct consultation will be with the Board, at least twice yearly, at the monthly board meetings. 
 

• Medical Staff Leader Designee 
◦ In accordance with CMS, the Board may determine if the Medical Staff leader must make the 

designation in writing when he/she chooses to designate another individual to make the periodic 
consultations or whether the leader of the Medical Staff may make informal, ad hoc designation; and 
if advance notice of a designation is required.   

◦ The Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board has determined:  
▪ the designation may be informal and adhoc; and 
▪ the Board requires no advance notice. 

 
• Frequency of Periodic Consultation 

◦ The Medical Staff leader or designee is required to meet at least twice during the fiscal year. 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Hospital Board of Trustees. Retrieved 05/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9325052/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 3

96/250

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

◦ The Board may increase the number of consultations based upon the scope and complexity of the 
hospital services offered, specific patient populations served by the hospital, and any issues of 
patient safety and quality of care that the hospital’s quality assessment and performance 
improvement program might periodically identify as needing the attention of the Board in consultation 
with it's Medical Staff. 

◦ The Medical Staff leader may also increase the number of consultations with the Board based upon 
the criteria listed above. 

• Required Elements of the Consultation 
◦ The required consultation must include discussion of matters related to the quality of medical care 

provided to patients of the hospital. 
 

• Board Responsiveness 
◦ The Board is expected to be responsive to any periodic and/or urgent requests from the leader of the 

Medical Staff or designee for timely consultation on issues regarding the quality of medical care 
provided to patients of the hospital. 
 

• Documentation 
◦ Consultation with the Medical Staff leader or designee will be documented in minutes, including 

attendees and the matters discussed. 

REFERENCES 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Ann Clevenger: CNO pending 

Irene Richardson: CEO 04/2021 

Tami Love: CFO 02/2021 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 02/2021 

CMS State Operations Manual, Appendix A – Survey Protocol, Regulations and Interpretive Guidelines 
for Hospitals (Rev. 151, 11-20-15), §482.12(a) (10), A-0053 retrieved from https://www.cms.gov/
Regulations-and-Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/downloads/som107ap_a_hospitals.pdf 

Reviewed and Approved: 

MEC 02/23/2021 

Quality Committee of the Board: 03/10/2021 

MHSC Board of Trustees: 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Hospital Board of Trustees. Retrieved 05/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9325052/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 3

97/250



COPY

Approver Date 

Ann Clevenger: CNO 02/2021 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Hospital Board of Trustees. Retrieved 05/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9325052/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 3

98/250



99/250



100/250



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
1200 College Drive – Rock Springs, WY 82901 
307-362-3711 (Phone)   307-352-8180 (Fax) 

cnelson@sweetwatermemorial.com 
 

803120  3/21                             Public Records Request Form   

Public Records Request Form 

  

Date: __________________ 

I am requesting Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County provide the following information in accordance with 
Wyoming State Statue § 16-4-204(e): 
 

PART I:  I hereby request to: ____Inspect   ____Copy the following records (fee required): 

(please be specific and include names, dates, keywords and the name of the record) Attach additional sheet if necessary. 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

PART II: If the request is for Copy, what document format do you request? ____Paper   ____Electronic 

                If paper format what delivery method do you request? _____Pick up   ____US Mail   ____Fax 

                If electronic format what delivery method do you request? ____Email   ____Disk 
 

Name of individual requesting information: 

Mailing Address (required if US mail delivery is requested): 

Phone Number (optional): 

Fax Number (required if fax delivery is requested): 

Email Address (required if email delivery is requested): 
 

Document Costs: 

$0.50 per page for document requests readily retrievable and not exceeding a maximum of 50 pages in total. 
$0.50 per page plus an hourly rate of $31.75 per hour for document requests exceeding 50 pages in total. 
Retrieval fee of $30.00 for any documents stored off site or archived in any format. 

101/250



102/250



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 8409169 

Approved: 09/2020 
Review Due: 09/2022 
Document Area: Emergency Operations 
Reg. Standards: TJC EM.02.01.01, TJC 

EM.02.02.01, TJC EM.02.02.03, 
TJC EM.02.02.05, TJC 
EM.02.02.07, TJC EM.02.02.09, 
TJC EM.02.02.11, TJC 
EM.02.02.13, TJC EM.02.02.15 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS (links) 
In Alphabetic order: 

• Link to 1135 Waiver Request Procedure https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9548773/latest/ 

• Link to Active Shooter Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674995/
latest/ 

• Link to Boiler Failure Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674718/latest/ 
• Link to Bomb Threat Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674829/latest/ 
• Link to Call-Tree Phone List Policy http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4000707/latest/ 
• Link to Code Pink: Infant/Child Abduction Response Plan 

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3972423/latest/ 
• Link to Code Red: Fire Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674716/

latest/ 
• Link to Comprehensive Procedures for Ethylene Oxide (EO) for Sterilization 

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/1739527/latest/ 
• Link to Decontamination Response - Emergency Operations

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County's (MHSC) Emergency Operations Plan provides an organized 
process to initiate, manage, and recover from a variety of emergencies or incidents, both external and internal, 
which could confront the Hospital and the surrounding community based upon the annual Hazard Vulnerability 
Assessment (HVA). 

The Emergency Operations Plan describes a comprehensive "all hazards" continuity of operation plans with 
command structure that uses the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) for coordinating six (6) critical 
areas: communications, resources and assets, safety and security, staffing, utilities, and clinical activities. The 
overall response procedures include emergencies that can temporarily affect demand for services, along with 
emergencies that can occur concurrently or sequentially that can adversely impact patient safety and the 
ability to provide care, treatment, and services for an extended length of time. 

MHSC frequently reviews and updates emergency plans to establish the necessary policies and procedures to 
achieve preparedness for, response to and recovery from an incident. These plans and procedures are 
exercised and reviewed to determine and measure functional capability. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 25

1/28103/250

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3615387/latest/ 
• Link to Delegation of Authority and Succession Plan https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/

policy/9357259/latest/ 
• Link to Evacuation Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674819/latest/ 
• Link to Hazardous Spill and Exposure Response Plan  http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/

policy/3674797/latest/ 
• Link to Loss of Air Handling Units http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674796/latest/ 
• Link to Loss of Elevators http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674787/latest/ 
• Link to Loss of Medical Gas or Vacuum http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674740/

latest/ 
• Link to Mass Casualty Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674815/

latest/ 
• Link to Medical Staff Policy for Granting Privileges in Disasters 

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3844658/latest/ 
• Link to Natural Disaster Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674812/

latest/ 
• Link to Pandemic Response Plan https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/7761435/

latest/ 
• Link to Patient Upsurge: Internal Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

3674824/latest/ 
• Link to Physical Altercation Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

3674813/latest/ 
• Link to Plumbing Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674792/latest/ 
• Link to Power Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674737/latest/ 
• Link to Severe Weather Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674808/

latest/ 
• Link to Tornado Watch And/Or Warning Response Plan http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/

policy/5035899/latest/ 
• Link to Water Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674802/latest/ 

Link to Hospital Incident Command System Forms (see also attached) 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (EOP) 
I. RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Leadership 

The hospital's leaders, including the medical staff, are involved in the planning activities of the 
Emergency Operations Plan. The medical staff, Senior Leadership, and department heads are 
represented in the Emergency Management Committee. The final copy of the EOP will be approved 
by the Emergency Management Committee and Senior Leadership. 

B. Emergency Program Managers 

The Emergency Management Coordinator and the Emergency Department Director or designee 
work together as the Emergency Program (EP) Managers. The EP Managers provide overall 

https://emsa.ca.gov/hospital-incident-command-system-forms-2014/ 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 25

2/28104/250



COPY

management of the hospital's preparedness efforts, including developing needed procedures, 
coordinating production or revision of the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), planning and 
executing training and exercises, and writing After Action Reports (AAR). The EP Managers or a 
designee will represent the Hospital at various preparedness meetings at the local, regional, and 
state levels. The desired background for an Emergency Program Manager includes formal and 
informal training, education, and/or experience in emergency management, National Incident 
Management System (NIMS), Hospital Incident Command, hospital operations and familiarity with 
local, regional, and state healthcare-system design and emergency response procedures. 

C. The Emergency Management Committee 

The Hospital's Emergency Management Committee is a multidisciplinary group of hospital 
representatives involved in planning for potential disasters based upon the HVA. Local agencies 
such as police, fire/emergency medical services, city and county emergency management and public 
health, through committee deliberations, will help clarify the Hospital's roles and responsibilities to 
support community response to incidents. Multi-agency collaboration will   encourage familiarity and 
networking between community partners as well as promote much needed priority setting, 
information-sharing, and joint decision-making during a true incident. 

The Hospital's Emergency Management Committee meets regularly and consists of clinical and 
non-clinical representatives from key Hospital departments and functioning units of the facility. The 
Emergency Management Coordinator is the Committee chairperson. The chairperson will set each 
meeting's agenda and facilitate the Committee's work to achieve an annually established set of 
objectives. Minutes of each meeting will be published and disseminated to Committee members. 

To ensure overall readiness and support, the chairperson will submit biannual reports to the 
Performance Improvement Patient Safety (PIPS) Committee and the Quality Committee of the Board 
to inform the hospital's Chief Executive Officer and Senior Leadership of Committee activity, 
obstacles encountered, and assistance needed. 

II. PLANNING ACTIVITIES – EM.01.01.01 
A. HAZARD VULNERABILITY ANALYSIS 

MHSC will identify potential emergencies that could affect demand for the Hospital's services or its 
ability to provide those services, the likelihood of those incidents occurring, and the consequences of 
those incidents. The assessment is the Hazard Vulnerability Analysis (HVA) attached to this Plan, 
which is designed to assist the Emergency Management Committee in gaining a realistic 
understanding of the vulnerabilities and to help focus the resources and planning efforts. The 
community and region's HVA assessments will also be an aid in the assessment by the Hospital. A 
list of priority concerns will be developed from the HVA and will be evaluated annually to determine 
what exercises are to be conducted and any additional planning. 
 

B. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

MHSC has established a relationship with community partners. Potential emergencies are identified 
in the MHSC's Hazard Vulnerability Analysis and prioritized, in conjunction with HVAs from 
community partners. The HVA aids in establishing the needs and vulnerabilities of the Hospital.  The 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 25

3/28105/250



COPY

Hospital communicates its needs and vulnerabilities to community emergency response agencies 
and identifies the community’s capability to meet its needs.  This communication and identification 
occur at the time of the hospital's review of its Emergency Operations Plan, which occurs at least 
every two years and whenever its needs or vulnerabilities change. 

During a disaster, the Hospital's role within the community is to care for sick and/or wounded 
individuals who may present for treatment. The facility and community are involved through: 

▪ Local emergency management meetings 

▪ State emergency management meetings 

C. MITIGATION, PREPAREDNESS, RESPONSE AND RECOVERY 

The Emergency Program Managers and the Emergency Management Committee will develop 
appropriate specific emergency response plans based on priorities established as part of the Hazard 
Vulnerability Analysis. Each Emergency Response Plan will address the four (4) phases of 
emergency management activities: 

Mitigation - Activities designed to reduce the risk of and potential damage due to an emergency (i. 
e., the installation of stand-by or redundant equipment, training). 

Preparedness - Activities that organize and mobilize essential resources such as plan-writing, 
employee education, preparation with outside agencies, acquiring and maintaining critical supplies. 

Response - Activities the Hospital undertakes to respond to disruptive incidents. The actions are 
designed with strategies and actions to be activated during the emergency (i. e., control, warnings, 
and evacuations). 

Recovery - Activities the Hospital undertakes to return the facility to complete business operations. 
Short-term actions assess damage and return vital life-support operations to minimum safe operating 
standards. Long-term focus is on returning all Hospital operations back to normal or an improved 
state of affairs. 

D. Hospital Command Center (HCC) and Delegation of Authority 

1. The HCC will be set up immediately in the Physician Lounge. If the Physician Lounge is not 
available, the Incident Commander (IC) will identify an alternate site. The alternate HCC location 
will be announced overhead by the PBX Operator. The Incident Commander will initiate the 
Hospital Incident Command System (HICS). 

2. Order of succession: Due to rural nature and limited resources, the organization establishes 
and maintains orders of succession for key positions in the event Leadership is incapable of 
performing authorized duties.  Designation as a "successor" enables the selected individual to 
serve in the same position as the principal in the event of principal's death, incapacity, or 
resignation. (Joint Commission Quick Safety Issue 41 May 2018). Order of succession is 
determined with each incident as selection of individuals for key positions may vary based on 
type of incident.  Please see attached templates. 

3. Designation/delegation of authority: Due to rural nature and limited resources, designation/
delegation of authority is determined with each incident as designation/delegation of authority 
may vary based on type of incident. Designation/delegation of authority specify the actions 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 25

4/28106/250



COPY

individuals are authorized to implement.  The organization establishes designation/delegation of 
authority to provide successors the legal authority to act on behalf of the organization and to 
carry out specified duties.  Designation/delegation of authority will take effect when normal 
channels of direction are disrupted and will terminate when these channels are reestablished. 
(Joint Commission Quick Safety Issue 41 May 2018).  Please see attached templates. 

4. The persons selected to fill the HCC positions are preferred to have completed and documented 
ICS (Incident Command System)-100, 200, 700 and 800. These requirements are met annually 
through NetLearning Education and initial orientation. 

5. Once the type of the emergency is determined, the appropriate Emergency Response Plan will 
be initiated. 

▪ The Command staff will report to the Hospital Command Center. Command Staff may 
include a Public Information Officer, a Safety Officer, a Liaison Officer, one or more Medical 
Specialist and administrative support to assist with the phones and documentation. 

▪ The Incident Commander (IC) will organize and direct the HCC and give overall direction 
for hospital operations and if needed, authorize evacuation. 

▪ The IC in concert with the Command Staff, have the delegated authority to implement the 
appropriate emergency operations plans. 

▪ The Safety Officer will assist the IC to ensure that the Emergency Operations Plan is 
implemented and identify any hazards or unsafe conditions. 

▪ Public Information Officer (PIO) will provide information to the news media as directed or 
approved by the IC. 

▪ The Liaison Officer will coordinate with community partners and assist the IC as directed. 

▪ Administrative support will provide phone support and documentation support for the IC, 
along with receiving various information/tracking lists and messages. 

▪ The Section Chiefs for Operations, Planning, Finance, and Logistics will establish their 
functions as directed by the Incident Commander. They will then report to their designated 
meeting place to receive further instructions. 

▪ The IC or Liaison Officer, initiates communication with local emergency response groups, 
as needed. 

▪ The proper HICS identification apparel will be issued to the Command Center Staff and 
Section Chiefs and other designated personnel as required by the incident and HICS 
structure established. 

▪ The IC will direct Security Department personnel to the appropriate location as necessary 
in preparation for securing the facility (lock-down). 

E. Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) 

The hospital has implemented the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) developed by the 
Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) of California as a revision from the previous Hospital 
Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS). 

HICS is an incident management system based on the Incident Command System (ICS) that assists 
hospitals to improve their emergency management planning, response, and recovery capabilities for 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 25

5/28107/250



COPY

unplanned and planned incidents. HICS is consistent with ICS and the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS) principles. The new HICS has been restructured to be consistent with 
ICS and NIMS principles and will provide greater flexibility/adaptability for the hospital setting. 

Command Staff 

F. Operations Section 

The Operations Section conducts the tactical operations (e.g., patient care, clean up) to carry out the 
plan using defined objectives and directing all needed resources. Many incidents that are likely to 
occur involve injured or ill patients. The Operations Section Chief will be responsible for managing 
the tactical objectives outlined by the Incident Commander. This section is typically the largest in 
terms of resources to marshal and coordinate. To maintain a manageable span of control and 
streamline the organizational management, Branches, Divisions, and Units are implemented as 
needed. The degree to which command positions are activated depends on the situational needs 
and the availability of qualified command officers. 

Operations Staff 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 25

6/28108/250



COPY
G. Planning Section 

The Planning Section collects and evaluates information for decision support, maintains resource 
status information, prepares documents, and maintains documentation for incident reports. It will also 
be responsible for preparing status reports, displaying various types of information, and developing 
the Incident Action Plan (IAP). The effectiveness of the Planning Section has a direct impact on the 
availability of information needed for the critical, strategic decision-making done by the Incident 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 25

7/28109/250



COPY

Commander and the other General Staff positions. 

Planning Section 

H. Logistics Section 

The Logistics Section provides support, resources, and other essential services to meet the 
operational objectives set by Incident Commander. For the hospital to respond effectively to the 
demands associated with a disaster, the Logistics Section will coordinate support requirements. 
These responsibilities include acquiring resources from internal and external sources using standard 
and emergency acquisition procedures and requests to the local EOC (Emergency Operation 
Center). When requesting resources from outside sources, it will be important that the hospital 
specify exactly what is needed and not try to identify how that need can be met: that will be done at 
the local EOC. In addition, it is important for the hospital to know how the requests are to be made 
(electronically, fax, phone): HICS form #254 - EOP Manual Flash drive 

Logistics Section 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 25

8/28110/250



COPY
I. Finance Section 

The Finance/Administration Section monitors costs related to the incident while providing accounting, 
procurement, time recording, and cost analyses. The costs associated with the response must be 
accounted for from the outset of the incident. These costs can come from multiple sources such as 
overtime; loss of revenue-generating activities; and repair, replacement, and/or rebuild expenses. 
Daily financial reporting requirements are likely to be modified and, in select situations, new 
requirements outlined by state and federal officials. 

Preplanning efforts should identify what state and federal financial aid documents must be completed 
for receiving reimbursement. In addition to patient costs being tracked, vendor expenses, mutual aid 
financial remuneration, and personnel claims must also be accounted for and processed. The 
Finance/Administration Section coordinates personnel time (Time Unit), orders items and initiates 
contracts (Procurement Unit), arranges personnel-related payments and Worker's Compensation 
(Compensation/Claims Unit), and tracks response and recovery costs and payment of invoices (Cost 
Unit). 

Finance Section 

III. INVENTORY & MONITORING OF ASSETS & 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 25

9/28111/250



COPY

RESOURCES 
A. 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

IV. EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN – EM.02.01.01 
A. Response 

Each emergency response plan has procedures to direct the immediate and long term response to 
the emergency. The "all hazards"  Continuity of Operation Plan (COOP) command structure is 
used to manage the response to the incident and assure adequate staffing for patient care and 
safety. A response to an emergency can include any of the following: maintaining or expanding 
services, conserving resources, curtailing services, supplementing resources from outside the local 
community, closing the hospital to new patients, staged evacuation, and total evacuation. 

B. Continuity of Operation Plan (COOP) is included with the essential functions/service, orders of 
succession, designation/delegation of authority, continuity, and communications. 
Memorial hospital of Sweetwater County has one or more emergency management response plans 
based on the emergency plan, risk assessment, and communication plan. Procedures guiding 
implementation are defined in this 
emergency management plan, continuity of operations plan, and other preparedness and 
response protocols. Response plans and procedure are documents are reviewed by the E.M. team 
and updated at least every two years; the format of these documents is at the discretion of the 
hospital. 

C. Staff Response 

1. All on-duty Staff will report to their department, reporting to their supervisor or Director and 
STAND-BY for further instructions (i.e., being ready, willing and able to perform assigned 
duties). Unit leaders will complete a Disaster Readiness Response form (attached) reporting 
current staffing levels and unit patient care activity to HCC.  Staff will continue their assigned 
patient care activities until directed otherwise by the HCC. 

2. Departments with excess personnel will advise HCC of the number of available staff to support 
the Labor Pool. Labor pool personnel will stay at their home department until called upon by 
HCC. 

3. Labor pool personnel will be assigned by the HCC as needed to support the hospital's incident 
response. 

MHSC has identified and documented the resources and assets that are available on-site and/or 
elsewhere prior to an incident. The Inventory and Sustainability Tool includes the assets and 
resources such as: 

Personal protective equipment (PPE) 

Water 

Fuel 

Medical supplies 

Surgical supplies 

Medications 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 25

10/28112/250



COPY

4. Patients and Staff away from their assigned treatment area will return to the appropriate area as 
soon as practical or receive instructions to secure the patient in an ancillary location if 
necessary. 

5. Staff unable to return to their assigned area will notify their Department Heads of the location of 
the patient and Staff member. Department Heads will report this to the HCC for patient tracking. 

6. All Staff requesting to go off duty must obtain the approval from HCC through their Department 
Heads. The Department Heads may not give this approval without prior clearance from the 
Incident Commander. Staff must not leave their workstations until relief has arrived or until 
dismissed by the Department Heads. 

D. Departmental Response 

Each Department Head, for both clinical and non-clinical operations, will assess the status of their 
Staff's ability to maintain normal operations. 

1. Each Department Head, or designee, will identify available resources, such as beds, personnel, 
and equipment, which could be allocated to the emergency response. 

2. The Department Head will complete the Disaster Readiness Report and relay the information to 
the HCC, on status of the department. 

3. When the departments receive the notification of the specific emergency, the Department 
Heads will initiate the appropriate departmental response plan for the emergency. 

4. The Department Heads will report any problems or concerns to the appropriate Section Leader 
or the HCC. 

5. No department should reduce its hours of operation without prior approval from the HCC. 

E. SUSTAINABILITY 

The importance of sustainability on supplies is crucial to determine if services can still be rendered 
during an emergency incident. The hospital plans for sustainability without the support of the 
community for the required 96 hours. This planning is a coordinated effort by the Emergency 
Management Committee and all hospital departments by reviewing the six critical areas before an 
incident has occurred. Where supplies and alternative means are required to sustain 96 hours of 
operation, alternative resources and assets, must be identified by the Incident Commander. The 
Inventory and Sustainability Tool has identified those resources and assets and the sustainability 
indicated in hours. 

F. RECOVERY PROCEDURES 

Recovery after an incident response defines the activities the hospital will take to restore the systems 
that are critical to resuming normal care, treatment and services. Short-term recovery actions assess 
damage and return vital life-support operations to minimum safe operating standards. Long -term 
recovery focuses on returning all hospital operations back to normal or an improved state. MHSC will 
follow the following recovery protocol: 

1. When deemed appropriate, the Incident Commander will initiate the recovery phase by 
announcing an "All Clear". 

2. The Incident Commander will notify the PBX Operator to alert the staff of the end of the incident 
by announcing "All Clear" by normal code announcement methods. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 25

11/28113/250



COPY

3. Labor Pool personnel will be released by the HCC Command Staff or a Section Chief. 

4. The Incident Commander notifies community Emergency Management Services of the "All 
Clear" action. 

Note: Upon announcement of the "All Clear", all information concerning the emergency 
will be recorded and properly filed for later reference using the noted HICS forms (EOP 
Manual Flash drive). 

5. Section Leaders and HCC staff will contact Unit leaders to receive information and critiques 
concerning the response to the emergency. 

6. Form #252, #256: All expenses and overtime information will be provided to the Finance Section 
for documentation. Evidence of the damage or abnormalities caused by the emergency, or 
response to the emergency, should be documented through photographs or descriptive writings. 

7. The Emergency Management Coordinator (EMC) and/or Security Personnel will collect and 
inspect all communication equipment, data processing systems, and other equipment used 
during the emergency. Equipment will be evaluated for appropriate use in the next emergency 
and consumable supplies documented for restocking.- The IC or designee will collect all HICS 
identification apparel and ensure that it is repackaged. EMC will be notified if materials need to 
be replaced for the next emergency. The IC or designee will ensure that the physical 
surrounding of the HCC is cleaned and furniture repositioned for normal operations. All 
documents used for the incident will be gathered and replacement copies of forms and 
documentation sheets will be replenished. 

8. The Hospital Command Center staff and appropriate designees will conduct the evaluation of 
the emergency and the response. The EMC will take notes, collect HICS forms and write the 
after action report (AAR). All reports shared and reviewed by the EM Team and then are stored 
in the EMC office. 

9. The Public Information Officer will communicate to the local media relevant information 
concerning the "All Clear" as directed and approved by the IC. 

G. PLAN INITIATION AND TERMINATION 

To facilitate the orderly initiation of the response to an incident, the following steps of the Emergency 
Operations Plan will be initiated: 

1. Information received by MHSC Emergency Department concerning an external incident facing 
the community or if an internal incident adversely affecting the function of the Hospital, the 
information will be passed directly to Administration or the Administrator on Call. 

2. When notified of a potential disaster, the Administration/ Administrator on Call, House 
Supervisor, Emergency Department (ED) Physician, ED Director and/or ED Nursing staff will: 

a. Evaluate the issues such as location of incident (internal, external), the distance from the 
Hospital, the scope of the incident (single individual, mass casualty), and weather 
conditions (seasonal and current). 

b. Based upon the severity of the incident, the decision will be made whether or not to 
implement HICS. 

c. Plan the care of casualty and non-casualty patients arriving in the Emergency Department 
during the incident. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 25

12/28114/250



COPY

d. Once it has been determined to activate HICS, the individual who takes the role of Incident 
Commander will notify the hospital staff and executives as soon as possible. 

3. Note: During work hours it is unknown which senior leader might be available. It may be the 
determination of administration to contact the Emergency Management Coordinator or other 
staff well trained in HICS methodology to assume the position of Incident Commander 

V. INCIDENT PHASES 
A. Phase I 

When the hospital is notified by EMS and/or other sources of an incident that has occurred that may 
involve multiple casualties or a small incident with no casualties has occurred within the facility: 

1. A Phase I incident is a situation that can most likely be managed with the staff already on duty. 

2. Staff should remain on their assigned unit and review their department specific procedures as 
applicable, to be prepared to respond to the next Phase if the incident requires an upgrade. 

3. The Department Supervisor or Charge Nurse will have a bed count and expected discharges 
ready to report to HCC. 

4. The Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) will be initiated. Potentially, only selected or 
affected departments may be notified depending upon expected or actual severity of the 
incident. 

B. Phase II 

When the hospital will be receiving a large number of patients or a major incident occurs within the 
facility and additional support staff will be required:. 

1. Situation requires additional staff to be called into the hospital – activate Emergency Hospital 
Alert System as needed. 

2. All on duty staff will remain at their assigned units and will follow the department specific 
procedures. 

3. The HCC will be initiated to coordinate incident operations. 

C. Phase III 

When the facility will be receiving large numbers of patients that is likely to overwhelm normal and 
emergency patient care services and/or significant issues have occurred within the facility that has or 
will disrupt continued operation and results in the need for extensive internal and/or external support: 

1. The HCC will be initiated to coordinate emergency operations. 

2. This major incident will require mobilization of most aspects of the HICS as detailed in the EOP, 
including initiation of  the Hospital Emergency Alert System for staff relief over an extended 
period of time. 

VI. ALTERNATE CARE SITES 
A. MHSC is prepared for the possibility that the buildings or spaces in which patient care is normally 

provided will be rendered unusable. In this type of incident, a pre-designated alternate care site may 
be activated. Other facilities such as hospitals, community location, etc. have been assessed and 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 25

13/28115/250



COPY

identified as alternate site locations. The Memorandum of Understanding with alternative care sites 
are available from the Accreditation Director. 

1. Holiday Inn - 307-382-9200 

2. Aspen Mountain Medical Center 307-352-8900 

3. Homewood Suites - 307-382-0764 

B. MHSC's decision to use an ACS in an emergency response will be decided by the Incident 
Commander. Any equipment and supplies that may be needed at the ACS will be provided by the 
Hospital, and will be transported by designees assigned through Hospital Incident Command team. 

C. The HCC will determine collectively if a request for an 1135 waiver needs to be completed.  IC will 
delegate this task to the appropriate individual. 

VII. COMMUNICATION MANAGEMENT – EM.02.02.01 
A. INTERNAL & STAFF NOTIFICATION LEVELS 

1. The Incident Commander will notify the PBX Operator to alert the Staff of the incident by 
announcing the applicable Code via the overhead paging system. 

2. During an emergency all staff may announce overhead the following emergencies by 
dialing 700: 

▪ Hostage Situation 

▪ Active Shooter 

▪ Physical Altercation 

Note: Any inappropriate use of the overhead paging will be subject to the corrective 
action process. 

3. The Staff may also be notified through alternate means and methods such as Intranet 
messages and personal communication devices (e. g., email, text messaging, pagers, walkie-
talkies, satellite phone and cellular telephones) via the Mass Notification Messaging System, 
a.k.a. RAVE. 

4. In case of RAVE/Mass Notification system failure (i.e.Internet down) public radio 
announcements will be made and we will begin a manual phone call process: 

a. Use the Call-Tree Phone lists kept on the Hospital's shared 
drive: http://T:\Administration_Public\Call-Tree Phone Lists  Hard copies of the Call-Tree 
are updated and kept in the EOP Binders in the Administration and Security Offices. 

b. Designate "Callers" within each department and divide the list to expedite notification. 

c. Begin a Disaster Response Report (DRR), to list each person contacted. 

d. Begin calling: notify staff of the type of Emergency Code. 

e. If contact cannot be made, leave a detailed message (if possible), and inform staff to call 
Hospital Command Center (HCC) at 352-8579 if/when available. 

f. When the end of the call list is reached, deliver DRR to department head or designee. 

g. Department head or designee will complete the DRR and deliver to HCC via a runner. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 25

14/28116/250



COPY

5. Call-Tree Phone lists will be maintained by Security via Human Resources notification. 

a. Each Director is responsible for notifying Security of staff phone number changes. 

b. Each Department should print and keep a current hard copy of their phone list readily 
available within their department. 

Note: Security will also maintain 3 hard copy sets of the Call-Tree Phone list in the EOP 
Binders kept in the Administration and Security offices and the Mobile Command Cabinet. 

6. Communications systems may include the following: 

▪ Internal telephone system: Internal communications will be limited to disaster-related 
issues once HICS has been initiated. THE OPERATOR SHOULD NOT BE CALLED FOR 
INFORMATION. 

▪ Radios: Communications Unit Leader will determine location and availability of radios and 
report to the Logistics Chief so distribution of radios can be determined. 

▪ Alphanumeric pagers, email, public address system, inter-departmental radios, fax, cellular 
telephones, runners, and RACES (i. e., Ham radio operators). 

▪ Cell phones: for Text messaging and/or in the event of Internet failure/internal phones 
down. 

B. EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS-CODES 

1. INCIDENT OVERHEAD ANNOUNCEMENT Emergency # 
Hostage Incident Hostage Situation 700 - all staff    

Use of a Weapon Active Shooter 700 - all staff 

Disturbance or Altercation Physical Altercation 700 - all staff 

External Incident/Mass Casualty Mass Casualty 300 

Radiation/Biological/Chemical/Incident HERT 300 

Bomb Threat Bomb Threat 300 

Fire CODE Red 300 

Infant/Pediatric Abduction CODE Pink 300 

Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest Code Blue 300 

Deterioration in Patient health Rapid Response 300 

Tornado Warning Tornado Warning 300 

Tornado Watch Tornado Watch 300 

C. NOTIFICATION & COMMUNICATION WITH EXTERNAL AUTHORITIES 

All appropriate external authorities will be notified to facilitate effective response, continuing 
operations, and recovery from an emergency that disrupts the normal patient care and/or business 
operations of the organization. When an emergency plan is initiated, the appropriate external 
authorities and community resources will be notified by telephone, cell phone, radio, or pager, 
whichever is functioning and available during an incident. 

D. COMMUNICATION WITH FAMILY 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 25

15/28117/250



COPY

In the event of a mass casualty incident, a temporary Family Support Center (FSC) may be 
established at the direction of the Incident Commander to facilitate in the relay of crucial information 
to family members regarding the status of patients and provide incident briefings as directed by the 
IC. Only immediate family members of victims/patients will be allowed access to the Hospital. All 
family members will be directed to either the classrooms or cafeteria in the basement to the chosen 
site for the FSC. In a situation where a patient's emergency contact is not present with the patient, 
the emergency contact will be advised of the location of the patient if the patient is moved or 
evacuated 

E. COMMUNICATION WITH MEDIA 

The Public Information Officer (PIO) has the responsibility for media and public information as it 
pertains to an incident that involves the Hospital and as directed by the Incident Commander. The 
PIO has established working relationships with local media, the local emergency management office, 
and public health prior to an incident. The PIO regularly attends meetings with the external agencies 
who in the event of a community-wide incident will establish a Joint Information Center (JIC). The 
information provided to the community will come from the JIC as a unified message to the residents 
of the area. If the Hospital is solely involved during an incident, the PIO in the Hospital Command 
Center will communicate with the community or local media as directed by the IC. 

F. COMMUNICATION WITH PURVEYORS 

MHSC has developed a list of purveyors, including vendors, contractors, and consultants that can 
provide specific services before, during, and after an incident. The list will be kept in the HCC and 
maintained by the Emergency Program Managers and updated as needed. Memorandum of 
Understandings (MOUs) have been developed to help facilitate services during the time of a 
community-wide incident. 

G. COMMUNICATION WITH OTHER HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

1. The Healthcare organizations that are located within the geographical area to the facility have a 
working relationship with MHSC before an incident occurs. The following area hospitals have a 
working relationship with MHSC: 

▪ St. John's Medical Center, Jackson, WY 

▪ Star Valley Medical Center, Afton, WY 

▪ South Lincoln Medical Center, Kemmerer, WY 

▪ Evanston Regional Hospital, Evanston, WY 

2. The key information to share with the other healthcare organizations: 

▪ Names & roles of Hospital Incident Command team 

▪ Resources & assets to be potentially shared 

▪ Process for the dissemination of patient & deceased individual names for tracking 
purposes 

▪ Communication with third parties 

3. 
The patient information that may be shared with the other healthcare organizations, local or 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 16 of 25

16/28118/250



COPY

state health departments, or other law enforcement authorities on the whereabouts of patients 
during an incident may include patient's name and location. The information shared about the 
patients will be in accordance with applicable HIPAA laws and regulations. 

H. COMMUNICATION WITH ALTERNATE CARE SITE 

The Hospital Command Center (HCC) will maintain communications with the Alternate Care Site 
(ACS). Once the ACS has been established, an Alternate Care Command Center (ACCC) will be 
initiated using the HICS format. The site will initiate contact with the HCC via the Hospital Liaison 
Officer through the ACS Liaison Officer to ensure that continuous communication, leadership and 
documentation will occur. The available communication will be the following: phones, fax, and radios. 

I. BACKUP COMMUNICATIONS 

MHSC will maintain a current listing of backup communication systems or devices. The 
communication devices or systems will be tested on a regular basis and be included in exercises. 

A listing of all communication of primary or secondary communication systems or devices is listed 
below: 

▪ Email will be available if the infrastructure is working. 

▪ Inter-departmental radios or inter-hospital radio networks may be used as backup 
communication. Training must be achieved along with an instruction card attached for those that 
do not use the equipment often. 

▪ Fax machines may be used as backup as long as some are on the emergency power and land 
line telephone lines are functional. 

▪ Ham radios may be used either with internal or external operators. 

▪ Cellular telephones have proven to shut down quickly during a natural or large-scale disaster 
and may not be reliable. 

▪ The Hospital has satellite telephones for back up communications. 

▪ Runners will be used as a last resort when all other communications fail. 

Mass Notification authority is granted to the Director of Security and appointed designees, PBX 
operators, and house supervisors. 

VIII. RESOURCE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT - EM 
02.02.03 
A. OBTAINING & REPLENISHING MEDICAL, NON-MEDICAL & MEDICATION SUPPLIES 

The amounts, locations, processes for obtaining and replenishing of medical and non-medical 
pharmaceutical supplies, including personal protective equipment, has been established. The 
process will need to go from mitigation to recovery stages. Medical supplies include anything used in 
the care of patients. Non-medical supplies include food, linen, water, fuel, and transportation 
vehicles. 

The amounts and locations of current supplies will be evaluated annually to determine how many 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 17 of 25

17/28119/250



COPY

hours the facility can sustain before replenishing. This will give the facility a par level on supplies and 
aid in the projection of sustainability before terminating services or evacuating if during an incident 
supplies are unable to get to the facility. The inventory of resources and assets that were discussed 
earlier in the Planning Activities Section is the starting point of par levels. 

Memorandums of Understanding for each applicable emergency operations plans are available from 
the Accreditation Director once the par level has decreased. 

B. SHARING OF RESOURCES 

The process of sharing resources with other healthcare organizations outside of the community 
during a regional incident will be coordinated through the county EOC. The local community EOC will 
be responsible for delivery of the needed resources. 

C. MONITORING RESOURCES AND ASSETS 

During the emergency, a process has been put into place under the Logistics Chief that will monitor 
the overall quantities of assets and resources. This information will be communicated through HICS 
within the facility and to those within the community who have a need to know. 

IX. SECURITY AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT – 
EM.02.02.05 
A. SECURITY WITH COMMUNITY 

Upon activation the Emergency Operations Plan, all available Security personnel will be called in to 
report to the Director of Security or Security Branch Director and standby for further direction from 
the HCC. Security issues will be handled according to Security Department policies and procedures. 
In the event that MHSC's Security Department becomes overwhelmed, they will contact the Joint 
Combined Communications Center to request support from local law enforcement and state law 
enforcement agencies.  Local law enforcement or Western Wyoming Community College security if 
available, may be utilized to assist with outside traffic control and crowd control as well as external 
security for the facility. 

B. ACCESS & EGRESS CONTROL 

Due to the limited amount of Security personnel in the facility at any given time, there may be a time 
when the facility is locked down. Secure Operations or a "lock down" refers to the locking of all 
entrance and exit doors to buildings and the posting of personnel at these doors to assure that only 
authorized persons enter or exit. The decision to "lockdown" the facility will be made by the Incident 
Commander in HCC. 

C. TRAFFIC CONTROL 

Security Branch Director will initiate the organization's Traffic Control Plan to manage the movement 
of personnel, vehicles, and patients both inside and on the grounds of the facility if the need arises 
during an incident. Security personnel will support the movement of patients and staff inside the 
facility. If advisable, the Security staff will also assist in the movement of vehicles, both emergency 
and commercial, on the grounds. When appropriate, local law enforcement will assist in the 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 18 of 25

18/28120/250



COPY

management of traffic on the grounds of facility. 

X. STAFF MANAGEMENT – EM.02.02.07 
A. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

MHSC will provide staff training to ensure that critical staff functions will be performed for the rapid, 
effective implementation of any incident response. 

When the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) is established, the HICS Organization Chart 
and Job Action Sheets are used to assist Command Staff and Section Chiefs to assign staff to HICS 
positions as situational conditions dictate. 

The Section Chiefs are responsible for assuring that the critical tasks they manage are filled by the 
most appropriate available staff member and to assure that the tasks are performed as quickly and 
effectively as possible. 

If staff is not available for handling critical tasks defined by the Job Actions Sheets, staff will be 
drawn from the appropriate departments or from the Labor pool. Human Resources will function as 
the Personnel Tracking Manager. 

As staff is recalled, they may replace personnel in task assignments for which they are better 
qualified to perform. Staff can only perform activities that they are capable of safely performing or for 
which they are allowed based on certification/license. If questions arise concerning assignments, the 
appropriate Section Chief will determine who will perform the task. The tasks are evaluated 
frequently to ensure the most appropriate staff members available are being used, burnout or 
incident stress problems are identified, and staff members in these jobs are rotated as staff levels 
allow. 

B. MANAGING STAFF SUPPORT ACTIVITIES 

During activations of HICS, various modifications and accommodations are made for hospital staff to 
assist them in coming to the hospital to provide needed services. The following accommodations are 
authorized: 

▪ When there is a Mass Notification and it is difficult or impossible because of weather conditions, 
the hospital will work with law enforcement that possess the appropriate type of vehicles to 
assist staff and extended family members in getting to and from the hospital or alternate care 
site(s). 

▪ Where necessary because of conditions, the hospital will accommodate staff that need to sleep, 
eat, and/or other services in order to be at the hospital to provide needed services. 

▪ The hospital will facilitate incident stress debriefings. Debriefing areas may be staffed by 
available staff from either Southwest Counseling, available clergy, and others in the community 
or state(s) trained in incident stress debriefing. 

C. MANAGING STAFF FAMILY SUPPORT ACTIVITIES 

During activations of the EOP, various accommodations may be made for staff family members. The 
accommodations are to ensure that staff is available to provide their services to the Hospital and 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 19 of 25

19/28121/250



COPY

community. Family accommodations will be made available in those unusual situations where entire 
families must come to enable staff to be present for emergency services coverage. These will 
normally be arranged prior to families arriving at the hospital. Staff should notify HCC of their need 
for childcare, elder care or animal care before reporting to the Hospital. Staff should exhaust all other 
resources for care. 
 

1. Child Care Center: 

A Child Care Center will be established if deemed necessary and appropriate by the Incident 
Commander. The Childcare area will be set up at the Family, Internal & Occupational Medicine 
Clinic (3000 College Dr.) as determined by availability; an alternate care site may be necessary. 
Staffing for the Child Care Center will be assigned from the Labor Pool. The following 
requirements regarding the Child Care Center will be followed: 

▪ A Childcare tracking form will be filled out upon admittance and discharge of child from the 
daycare 

▪ An ID band will be attached to each child 

▪ Food and or snacks may be provided by Nutritional Services, depending on length of 
disaster 

▪ Parents will need to provide the necessary essentials for their child; materials management 
will assist with additional supplies needed 

▪ Individuals designated to pick up children from Childcare will enter through the main 
entrance and be escorted to the Child Care Center 

▪ Parents or designee will sign out the child on the same tracking form the child was signed 
in on 

2. Elder Care: 

▪ In the event that elder care is needed, the hospital can utilize any available space in the 
hospital. In the event the hospital does not have space readily available, then an alternate 
care site can be utilized. It would be the responsibility of HCC to assess the needs and 
designate caregivers to the alternate site from the Labor Pool. 

3. Pet Care: 

▪ If staff or patients arrive with their pets, the Sweetwater County Emergency Management 
Office (SCEMO) (307-922-5370) or Sweetwater County Sheriff's Office (SCSO) (after 
hours at 307-922-5300) will be contacted by HCC. SCEM) or SCSO will contact 
Sweetwater County Animal Response Team to assist with the temporary placement of 
animals. Complete Small Animal Intake Form (Appendix 10 – Code Orange: External 
Incident / Patient Surge, Attachment) 

D. TRAINING AND IDENTIFICATION OF STAFF 
 

1. The staff identified for Command and Chief positions will receive the appropriate training in 
HICS and NIMS prior to an incident. This training will also be made available to the staff, LIP 
and authorized volunteers. 

2. Hospital Incident Command System identification vests are issued for the appropriate roles in 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 20 of 25

20/28122/250



COPY

the HICS organization chart. Vests identify the HICS title/role and are color coded by branch for 
easy recognition. 

3. All employees will wear their hospital identification badges at all times during the incident. 

XI. MANAGING UTILITIES – EM.02.02.09 
A. During an incident, the organization will ensure alternate means for providing essential utility systems 

are available as identified in the EOP. The organization will assess the requirements needed to 
support and maintain essential systems such as fuel, water, exterior storm drains and supplies for a 
period of time identified in the Inventory and Sustainability Tool. 

B. This assessment shall include the requirements for 96 hours without community support. The 
alternative means for these sources are located in the Inventory and Sustainability Tool. 

C. The alternative utility systems and supplies networks are identified in the Facilities Support Policies 
and are included in the Alternate Utilities, on alternate means of essential utility systems. The list of 
essential utility systems includes: 

▪ Boilers 

▪ Air Handlers 

▪ Elevators 

▪ Medical gas systems/Vacuum systems 

▪ Plumbing 

▪ Normal power supply system 

▪ Emergency power supply system 

▪ Natural gas 

▪ Diesel fuel 

▪ Water supply 

▪ Maintaining Storm Drainage 

XII. MANAGING PATIENT CLINICAL AND SUPPORT 
ACTIVITIES – EM.02.02.11 
A. TRIAGE AND CASUALTY LOCATIONS 

Anyone seeking medical care in the Emergency Department during an Incident will be triaged. The 
area by the ambulance entrance doors will be the primary triage location. The Emergency 
Department waiting area can be used for triage if additional space is needed. Patients will initially be 
triaged by a physician or nurse and will be tagged for identification. All patients will be sorted as 
follows: 

The following locations have been identified as the locations for Provision of Care for casualties 
and fatalities: 
 

LOCATION DESCRIPTION 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 21 of 25

21/28123/250



COPY

Morgue Deceased victims will go to the basement morgue. Additional morgue 
space may be obtained by contacting the local mortuaries 

PACU Area Victims classified as walking wounded will be sent to the PACU (Post 
Anesthesia Care Unit) Area for evaluation 

Ambulance Garage/
Triage Area 

Triage will be conducted at the entrance to the ambulance garage. ED 
waiting area can be used if more space is needed. 

Same Day Surgery/
Patient Dying Area 

Patients expected to die (Black tagged) will be sent to an assigned 
room on Same Day Surgery for palliative care 

Nursing Care Units All patients requiring surgery will be held in the appropriate nursing 
care unit until they can be treated in the OR. 

 
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION 
Immediate 
Care 
Patients 
(Red Tag) 

Victims survival is dependent upon immediate medical intervention 

Delayed 
Care 
Patients 
(Yellow Tag) 

Victims whose injuries require intervention but whose condition allows 
treatment to be delayed for up to 1 hour without further deterioration 

Minor Care 
Patients 
(Green Tag) 

Victims whose injuries can wait an undetermined amount of time (greater than 
1 hour) without risk of significant deterioration 

No Injury Victims who do not require medical attention, but may require emotional 
support 

Morgue 
(Black Tag) 

Victims who are Deceased on Arrival or who will expire regardless of treatment 
will receive Palliative care. Clergy will be assigned 

Classrooms/
Discharge 
Area 

Inpatients and Outpatients who can be discharged, will be escorted to the 
classrooms or cafeteria in the basement if "Shelter in Place" conditions exist, 
otherwise patients can be discharged with the intention of leaving the facility 

B. PATIENT CARE AND DOCUMENTATION 

In the event of a situation, i.e. power loss, that impacts MHSC's electronic medical record; all 
departments will refer to the IT Downtime policy and/or their department specific Downtime policy for 
guidance. 

C. CLINICAL ACTIVITIES 

Depending on the nature of the incident, HCC will make the decisions on if and when the Hospital 
will temporarily close to new admissions, transfers, elective surgeries and procedures. 

D. EVACUATION ACTIVITIES 

MHSC realizes that a severe or catastrophic incident may force the evacuation of part or all of the 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 22 of 25

22/28124/250



COPY

Hospital. In the event that the Hospital needs to be evacuated the Incident Commander will give the 
evacuation order. 

E. PERSONAL HYGIENE AND SANITATION REQUIREMENTS 

In situations where hygiene may be compromised by lack of water for bathing and normal bathroom 
accommodations, the following guidelines will be followed: 

▪ The alternative means to personal hygiene can be baby wipes, personal wipes, or alcohol-
based rubs. 

▪ Family members may be supplied with cleaning materials and be used to help clean the patient 
during an incident. 

▪ The alternative means to sanitation, if toilets are inoperable toilets may be manually flushed 
using bottled or reclaimed water. 

▪ Environmental Services use of water will be curtailed to the extent of one change of water per 
day for mopping except in surgery, delivery rooms, and isolation areas or if deemed necessary 
by the Environmental Services Director. 

▪ Limit changes of bed linen to those patients who have gross soiling from draining wounds, 
catheters, etc. 

▪ The Verna Care system will not be used during this time. 

F. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

Due to limited availability, mental health services during an incident will be limited to the availability of 
staff from Southwest Counseling and/or the availability of Chaplin services. 

G. MORTUARY SERVICES 

In the event of an incident involving deceased patients, MHSC will contact the County Coroner for 
the appropriate clearance and procedures. If necessary, the "mobile morgue" owned by the County 
should be requested for securing bodies not able to be contained in facility's existing morgue. The 
Coroner's office will be notified when the refrigerated trailer is full or the disaster has been cleared. 

H. PATIENT TRACKING: INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL For the departments that will be receiving 
disaster patients such as the Emergency Room and patient care units, the units will have patient 
trackers assigned to track the patients entering and leaving the areas. The patient tracking 
information will be given to the Patient Tracking Manager who will track all the patients within the 
facility during an incident. The form to use for patient tracking will be the HICS 254 – Disaster Victim 
Patient Tracking Form. 

If patients are evacuated, the process will be the same except for the forms. The individual patient 
tracking for evacuation will be the HICS 260 – Patient Evacuation Tracking Form. 

When more than two patients are being evacuated, the HICS 255 – Master Patient Evacuation 
Tracking Form will be used as a master list of all those patients who were evacuated. 

XIII. DISASTER PRIVILEGES-VOLUNTEER LICENSED 
INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONERS (LIP)/OTHER 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 23 of 25

23/28125/250



COPY

LICENSED VOLUNTEERS – EM.02.02.13-15 
A. The hospital grants disaster privileges to volunteer licensed independent practitioners (LIP) and other 

volunteers that are licensed, certified and/or registered in a skilled healthcare position. 

B. Disaster privileges are extended when the Emergency Operations Plan has been activated in 
response to an incident and the Hospital is unable to meet immediate patient needs. The Medical 
Staff policy for granting privileges in the event of a disaster has identified the Hospital's process for 
granting disaster privileges 

XIV. SPECIAL NEEDS/VULNERABLE PATIENTS DURING 
EMERGENT TIMES RESPONSE 
A. 

1. 

2. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

▪ 

4. 

 Anyone seeking medical care in the Emergency Department during an emergency response will be 
triaged, including those with special needs. 

The staff at MHSC will be trained to identify the special clinical needs of the population of 
patients that are considered to be vulnerable during an emergency. 

Patient registration and medical records may be used to help identify the special needs/
vulnerable population. 

Clinical management decisions regarding the special needs/ vulnerable patients will be made on an 
individual basis and will take into account the medical needs of the patient and the current status of 
the emergency situation. 

In the event that the patient is treated at MHSC, clinical procedures provided will be 
documented in the patient’s medical record. 

All hospital departments are responsible for the tracking of the patient, both inside and outside 
the facility. 

If the patient needs specialized care not provided by MHSC, special provisions will be made and 
the patient will be transferred to an appropriate specialized care center. 

Pediatric patients- Primary Children’s Hospital, Salt Lake City, UT 

Denver’s Children’s Hospital, Denver, CO 

Geriatric and disabled patients- Transferred to specialty hospital depending on condition 
and availability 

Mental health/ addiction patients- Wyoming Behavioral Institute, Casper, WY 

Wyoming State Hospital, Evanston, WY 

Clinical management analysis will be made at the conclusion of the emergency response and 
revisions will be made as necessary in preparation for the next emergency. 

Approvals: 

Emergency Management Committee (via email vote) 9/9/2020 

MEC 2/23/21 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 24 of 25

24/28126/250



COPY

Attachments 

2020 - 96 hour sustainability grid-9.20.pdf 
2021 Hazard Vulnerability Analysis.pdf 
802673 - Small Animal Intake Form.pdf 
802675 - Child - Elder Care Registration-Tracking Form.pdf 
802676 - Decon Response Team.pdf 
802736 - Disaster Readiness Report.pdf 
803088 - Leadership Order Succession form 10.20.pdf 
HICS IV Forms and Instru#24.docx 
Hospital Resource Directory- HICS 258 Directory 2019.pdf 
Medical Staff Policy for Granting Privileges in the event of a Disaster 
Small-Rural Hospital Job Action Sheets.doc 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Irene Richardson: CEO 09/2020 

Tami Love: CFO [RF] 09/2020 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 09/2020 

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer 09/2020 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal Counsel [RF] 09/2020 

David Beltran: Security Director 09/2020 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
8409169/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 25 of 25

25/28127/250



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 8619846 

Approved: 02/2021 
Review Due: 02/2022 
Document Area: Emergency Operations 
Reg. Standards: TJC EM.02.01.01, TJC 

EM.03.01.01, TJC EM.03.01.03 

2020 Evaluation of Emergency Preparedness Plan 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

Objective 
Objective 

Met 
Description Action 

A minimum of 
two (2) practice 
exercise/drills 
conducted. 

Yes Each drill/exercise is 
prefaced by a pre-planning 
session with objectives 
identified and monitoring 
methods defined. Each drill 
is evaluated by an 
interdisciplinary group and 
documented. One (1) of the 
two (2) drills may be a 
functional incident in 
response to a real event. 

Conduct two (2) exercise based on MHSC 
hazard vulnerability analysis to make 
ensure compliance with the requirements 
set forth by regulatory agencies. 
Exercise includes influx of patients to each 
separately licensed site and considers lack 
of community support to emergency. 

Staff required to 
respond in 
emergency 
situations are 
appropriately 

Yes Training includes the proper 
use of personal protective 
equipment (PPE) or other 
specialized equipment, 

The Hazmat team faces challenges due to 
the availability of staff resources. New ways 
to encourage staff involvement under 
consideration/ This issue is currently 
resolved as of Dec. 2016 as there is now 

It is the goal of the Emergency Management Committee (EMC), and by extension the leadership of Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County, to evaluate the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) on an annual basis. The 
EOP will be evaluated for appropriateness of scope and effectiveness of the objectives. Any discrepant 
evaluation will fall to the Emergency Management Committee to formulate new objectives for the coming year. 

Joint Commission Standard 

EM.03.01.03: Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Emergency Operations Plan 

Emergency Operations Plan 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) will conduct an evaluation of its emergency planning 
activities every 12 months to ensure the EOP is appropriate for the organization and community served. The 
effectiveness of emergency planning activities is evaluated by the Emergency Management Committee. 

Evaluation of Emergency Operation Plan 

2020 Evaluation of Emergency Preparedness Plan. Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8619846/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 3

26/28128/250

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

Objective 
Objective 

Met 
Description Action 

trained for 
Hazmat 
responses. 

an operational team of 12 members. 

Record, analyze 
and act on 
problems failures 
and user errors 
observed during 
implementation 
of the plan. A 
designated 
controller and 
evaluators are 
identified for 
exercises. 

Yes Findings are forwarded to 
the interdisciplinary EMC. 
Data is used to identify 
opportunities to improve 
emergency management 
processes and to assure 
broad awareness of the 
ongoing development of the 
Emergency Operations 
Plan. 

Corrective action is identified and plans 
modified after action reports are generated 
and reviewed by the Emergency 
Management (EM) team after each 
exercise. This information is shared with 
Performance Improvement Patient Safety 
(PIPS) Committee and the Quality 
Committee of the Board, which in turn 
informs the hospital CEO and Senior 
Leadership of any obstacles encountered 
and assistance needed. 

Collect 
appropriate 
performance 
improvement (PI) 
data twice (2 
times) a year 
during 
implementation 
of the plan via 
after action 
reports. 

Yes Data supports improvement 
standards as established by 
the EM Committee. 
Evaluation to include 
communications, 
resources, assets, security, 
staff, utilities, and patients. 

Data is used to identify opportunities to 
improve EM performance, planning, 
response and staff training. 

Conduct annual 
evaluations of 
the objectives, 
scope 
performance and 
effectiveness of 
the Emergency 
Management 
program. 

Yes Report the results to the 
EM committee and the 
Quality Committee of the 
Board on an bi-annual 
basis. 

Make changes and recommendations of 
the EM program by the EM and Quality 
committee based on evaluations of 
emergency response exercises and actual 
emergencies. 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Approvals: 

MEC 2/23/21 

2020 Evaluation of Emergency Preparedness Plan. Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8619846/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 3

27/28129/250



COPY

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Irene Richardson: CEO 02/2021 

Tami Love: CFO 02/2021 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 02/2021 

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer 09/2020 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal Counsel 09/2020 

David Beltran: Security Director 09/2020 

2020 Evaluation of Emergency Preparedness Plan. Retrieved 04/2021. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8619846/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 3

28/28130/250



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…April Quality Committee Meeting 
Date:  April 26, 2021 
 
Kara Jackson discussed the Board Reporting Calendar. It should come to the Quality Committee 
in May for review and approval. 
 
Still no dates for the Joint Commission Survey. It will last about 2.5 days. Staff says they are 
ready. Some hospitals in Wyoming have undergone the Survey thus far in 2021. 
 
Dr. Quickenden discussed the Star Rating situation. Staff is working cooperatively and very hard 
to address the germane issues. Dr. Sowada asked questions regarding target dates and 
responsibility designations. The dashboard should eventually show progress on addressing the 
issues. 
 
Norene Hove gave an update regarding C. diff. Some recent discoveries about the prevalence of 
C. diff in the county will affect ratio reporting. Staff is working to review all C. diff cases and 
otherwise address the infection issue. This is an important marker for MHSC and more 
information will be forthcoming in the future. 
 
Kara Jackson reviewed the PIPS (Performance Improvement and Patient Safety) Plan which 
needs to be updated and reviewed annually. The Quality consultant provided staff input for 
Plan improvement and her recommendations are being incorporated. Several changes to the 
existing plan are being made.  The plan is to have staff bring the PIPS plan back to the Quality 
Committee for approval in May.  
 
David Beltran reviewed the Emergency Operations Plan with the Committee. The plan is very 
thorough and comprehensive. Heretofore, the Plan has not been presented to the Board of 
Trustees for approval. The Quality consultant, Mella, informed staff that it needs to be brought 
to the Board of Trustees for review and approval every two years. The Committee approved a 
motion to approve the Plan and forward it to the Board of Trustees for consideration at the 
May meeting of the Board. 
 
Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff update. Currently, there are no COVID-19 patients in the 
hospital. Discussion took place regarding physician involvement and engagement in patient 
care. Sepsis and C. diff issues will be given close scrutiny. 
 
Board members can refer to the draft Quality minutes in the packet for further information. 

131/250



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   4/23/2021 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

April 21, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Marty Kelsey (Quality Board 

Chair), Irene Richardson (CEO), Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO), Dr. Kari Quickenden 

(CCO), Tami Love (CFO), Dr. Banu Symington, Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality Board 

Member) 

 

Non-voting Members: Noreen Hove, Valerie Boggs, Karali Plonsky, Corey Worden, 

Cindy Nelson 

 

Guests: David Beltran (Director Security), Taylor Jones (Board Member) 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members: Ann Clevenger (CNO), Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director), Dr. Cielette 

Karn 

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel 

 

Chair:   Mr. Marty Kelsey  

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Mr. Kelsey presented the Agenda for approval, Dr. Sowada motioned to approve, Ms. 

Richardson seconded. Motion was approved. Mr. Kelsey than presented the March 10, Minutes 

for approval. Dr. Sowada motioned to approve, Dr. Quickenden seconded the motion. Motion 

was approved.   

 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Quickenden shared a recent experience that Tracie Soller, Director of Medical Imaging 

shared in regard to two (2) of her MRI technologists; Bobby and Jerry. Ms. Soller received a 

phone call from the patient’s wife, who said how gracious, kind and helpful they were, and said 

they displayed excellent patient care. 

 

Old Business 

Ms. Jackson addressed the Board Reporting Calendar, noting that Dr. Quickenden, Ms. 

Richardson and herself met a few weeks ago and completed the majority of the calendar. They 

will meet one more time to ensure they have it ready to go, then they will forward to Dr. Sowada 

and Mr. Kelsey for review, with the plan to bring to the Quality Committee next month for 

approval. 

 

Dr. Quickenden gave on update on The Joint Commission Survey – We are still waiting! Dr. 

Quickenden noted that several facilities in the state (Cheyenne, Laramie and Jackson) have 

recently been surveyed. We continue to round and ensure we are prepared. Dr. Quickenden 

also outlined the survey process: check the website, provide a scribe, accompany surveyors, 

pull charts and records. It will be 2 ½ days long……we are ready! 

 

Dr. Quickenden next updated the committee on Star Rating process – we are working on 

incorporating our communication plan, and doing concurrent review of cases to ensure we are 

coding appropriately.  There is a lot of hard work happening, it is very multidisciplinary, and we 

 

132/250



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   4/23/2021 

are seeing everyone very engaged in the improvement. She further noted we should soon see 

those results on the dashboard. Dr. Sowada complimented everyone on their hard work! She 

also questioned if target dates had been set. Dr. Quickenden stated most but not all have set 

dates, although all that information has not yet been included in the report, but would be going 

forward. Dr. Poyer noted that from the Provider standpoint they are working cohesively with the 

Nursing staff, and looking both monthly and quarterly at data to ensure it continues to improve. 

Dr. Sowada further questioned designating ownership of specific measures by Medical Staff. The 

Quality Team noted that had been discussed, and they went back and forth on including 

names and in the end did include positions, in case those positions were influx. Dr. Sowada 

noted it is a good way to both engage and recognize.  

 

Ms. Hove began the review of the PIPS Update with disclosure of a discovery that one of the 

Clostridioides difficile (C.diff) cases reported should not have been, but this lead to another 

discovery that one Lab system is not routing properly to the Infection Preventionist que. What we 

learned was there were more cases in our community, which alters our standard infection ratio, 

which in turn allows us a higher prevalence rate in our community. Currently Ms. Hove and Ms. 

Sara Roth (Infection Preventionist from Tuft Medical) are manually reviewing cases. Our goal will 

always be zero (0) cases of hospital acquired C. diff.  
 

The remainder of the PIPS report was noted to be high level information that was appreciated, if 

not completely understood. Dr. Sowada did request that completion/success dates be added 

to the report. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson presented the Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan.   This is 

updated and reviewed yearly. When Mella was here she gave suggestions for improvement, 

which we utilized and made extensive changes. Additionally, we purchased a program from 

the Joint Commission called PolicySource, which provides sample policies for comparison to our 

policies, helping us visualize any gaps.  

 

Changes to the Plan: 

 Removed Safety data (moved to Patient Safety Plan) 

 Added documentation and presentation with the PIPS tools 

 Expanded committee members to include more leadership 

 Reorganized data section for a better flow 

 Added a Communication plan appendices 

 Data Reliability and Validity 

 Benchmark, Target Goal and Stretch Goals        

 

A cushion of time was allowed for discussion and/or changes to be brought back to the PIPS 

Committee, so in turn it could be brought back to the May Quality Committee for approval. Dr. 

Quickenden thanked the Quality Team on their hard work. Mr. Kelsey urged any questions or 

remarks be directed to Ms. Jackson or Dr. Quickenden soon, so they can make the changes to 

bring back next month. 

 

Mr. Beltran presented the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), with some new updates:  

 Waiver 1135,  

 Quick links within the plan,  

 and Delegation of Authority.  

133/250



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   4/23/2021 

 

Mr. Beltran reviewed how we review and utilize the plan, including new education that is 

available for Command staff.   Mr. Beltran further reviewed, with highlights, each section of the 

EOP, including the change to “plain language’ usage to identify Codes. Dr. Quickenden noted 

this plan was identified by Mella as needing Board review and approval every 2 years. Dr. 

Quickenden also noted The Joint Commission has always been very complimentary of our plan 

and that David does a really great job with this.  Mr. Kelsey requested a motion to approve both 

plans for inclusion and approval in the May Board of Trustees meeting; Dr. Sowada motioned  to 

approve the plan and forward to the Board for due pass, Ms. Richardson seconded. Motion 

passed.                                                                                                  

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff update in the absence of Dr. Karn. We currently have no 

COVID-19 patients in the hospital, we continue to have weekly physician update meetings to 

discuss COVID-19 and plans, we continue to assess our ability to improve patient satisfaction 

scores, we meet with the Hospitalist, ED physicians, Gen Med, Medicine Department and 

Surgery to discuss physician involvement and engagement in the overall improvement of 

patient care and outcomes. We continue to look for areas of improvement, with creation of 

subgroups for Sepsis and C.diff. We continue with Joint Commission readiness. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Mr. Kelsey Presented the Informational Items for Review and requested any pullouts for 

discussion. Dr. Quickenden requested pulling out the Star Rating dashboard, outlining upcoming 

meetings and projects as we work through the process. On May 3rd and 4th the Quality Team will 

have a virtual visit with Press Ganey, with plans for education on HCHAPS for improvements and 

interventions. Dr. Sowada questioned could we turn this rating around within 1 year – the 

committee unanimously agreed that a 1 year turn around is the GOAL!   

 

Mr. Kelsey had a question on the Risk and Grievance dashboard, specifically the Medication 

Error numbers that don’t seem to add up. Dr. Quickenden stated she was unsure of those 

numbers and would have to discuss with Ms. Hove Infection Preventionist and Corey Worden 

Quality Analyst and bring back an explanation next month. 

 

From the Director – bimonthly 

No updates this month. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:45 am 

 

Next Meeting    May 19, 2021 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

134/250



Patient Safety & Accreditation Summary  
 

Quality Committee of the Board  
April 2021  

 
Patient Safety 

The Patient Safety Committee continues to progress. The committee and its members have 
reviewed several patient safety issues and are actively working on solutions. HCAHPS questions 
concerning the Patient’s Perception of Safety and Quality of Care, Treatment, and Services were reviewed 
and will be taken to PFAC for further input. The committee continues to thoroughly review and discuss 
data that will be reported into the committee. Topics and associated indicators have been decided upon. 
The continuation of the discussion involves defining roles and responsibilities for data collection, 
analysis, and presentation for improvement, as well as the frequency of reporting.  A Patient Safety 
Dashboard, along with several associated dashboards, are being developed to facilitate data entry and 
analysis. Action planning for Culture of Safety Survey is underway. A timeline for implementation of 
several phases of the Action Plan has been developed, including plans for a Good Catch Campaign to be 
implemented house wide in May. This action plan will address the improvement opportunity of Reporting 
of Patient Safety Events identified from the results of the Culture of Safety Survey. The Patient Safety 
Committee has additional patient safety issues on the April agenda to discuss. The Infection Prevention 
Plan Annual Evaluation is also due to be discussed at the April meeting. 

 
Accreditation 

We remain in our Joint Commission triennial survey window and an on-site survey will likely 
occur soon, however this is also dependent upon the COVID 19 situation in Sweetwater County. CSR 
Committee continues to meet weekly in order to prepare. There are some standards that need work to 
come into compliance and this work is underway. “Joint Points” continue to be shared with the hospital 
and clinics and serve as great reminders and reinforcement of standards. We continue to round to 
departments to help them prepare for survey. 

 

 

 

 

135/250



HR CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD FOR APRIL 2021 

 Ed Tardoni 

The Human Resources Committee met in a Zoom format in April.  Board member Marty Kelsey was 

invited to the meeting in anticipation of a Board member absence. 

HR DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual HR reports are included in the Board packet.  MHSC continues to perform above the national 

average with respect to employee retention. 

POLICY ACTIVITY 

TELECOMMUTING POLICY (sent to the Board with a do pass recommendation) 

This policy appeared under new business in the April Board packet.  It will appear in the May Board 

Packet under old business and be listed for action. 

COMMITTEE DISCUSSIONS 

PTO 

The members of the committee discussed implications surrounding the fact that some contract 

employees do not acquire PTO.  A potential policy for submission to the Board was analyzed.  The group 

concluded the matter is best handled as a contract issue rather than as a specialized policy. 

COMMITTEE DOCUMENTATION AND REPORTS 

The chair noted the record requirements for Committee documents.  The timely issuance of the monthly 

HR report, policies for Board consideration, and the chair input to the Board packet was reviewed.  

Efforts will be made to avoid last minute submissions of these documents. 

NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the HR Committee will occur  May 17, 2021 at 3:00 P.M most likely by Zoom 

 

 

136/250



137/250



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – April 19, 2021 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Attending by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Ed Tardoni 
Trustee Guest Attending by Zoom: Marty Kelsey 
Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Guests by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Cindy Nelson, Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger  
 
 
Ed called the meeting to order. He said Marty was invited to participate in Barbara’s anticipated absence. 

Barbara’s plans changed so Marty will be joining as a guest at about 3:20 PM. Rather than complete a formal 

roll call, Ed noted by observation on the computer screen that all on the committee were in attendance. 

Ed said he would move “Employee Policies” on the agenda to the end of the meeting to give Marty time to join 
and participate in the discussion. The motion to approve the agenda as modified was made by Barbara, second 
by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Ed noted some minor typo and spacing problems. The motion to approve the March 15, 2021, minutes 
as presented was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried.   

 
II. TURNOVER REPORT: 
 

Amber said the overall numbers are in the packet. No turnover information is included for the Clinic 
because for the past 2 months there have been no changes. Amber said we are sitting at 17% turnover. 
Approximately 23-26% is the average nationally. Ed said he tends to watch the service area population. We 
had a drop before Covid hit. He asked how many of our separations involve a spouse moving out of area and 
they are moving also. Amber said we saw a lot of that in 2020. Irene said she thinks that has plateaued.  

 
III. OPEN POSITIONS: 
 

Amy said we have 25 openings with 19 being FT, 3 PRN, and 3 PT. We have increased ads for targeted 
positions. The Patient Access Specialist is the updated title for admitting and reception. Amber said the job 
title was changed to be consistent in the industry. 

 
IV. EMPLOYEE POLICIES: 
 

a. Parental Leave Policy – Suzan said she is reviewing paid leave policies and procedures. She will 
keep the committee updated. 

 
  

138/250



 

Minutes of the April 19, 2021 Human Resources Committee 

Page 2 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
V. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS, OTHER DISCUSSION(S): 

 
Ed said the Board set up requirements for the committees and information needs to be in certain 

places. We need to meet the requirements. What the public sees is very confusing if there are multiple copies 
of information out there. He said his general thoughts about compliance is if something is approved by the 
Committee, it goes to the Board in “New.” If it goes ahead by the Board, it goes in “Old.” The same thing with 
minutes. Ed said we are interested in the current minutes. If we can do those things with the motivation to 
avoid confusion with the Board and the public, that would be appreciated. He said if we refer to the policy on 
what should appear where, then we won’t be beating anyone on the head and won’t be confused.  
 
VI. DETERMINATION OF NEXT MEETING DATE: 

 
The next meeting is scheduled May 17 at 3:00 PM.  
 
Ed thanked everyone for participating. The meeting adjourned at 3:48 PM. 

139/250



140/250



141/250



142/250



143/250



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD APRIL 2021 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in a Zoom format this month.    Barbara Sowada sat in for Taylor 

Jones. All other voting members of the committee were present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual F&A reports are included in the Board packet.  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION. 

The committee, by unanimous vote recommends do pass for $63,510.14 in capital purchases. As 

follows: 

FY 21-67      $36,725.75 

 Non-Budget Item 

This item was requested by Alan Wills and Alisha Mackie of Surgical Services. It is for an instrument used 

to differentiate parts of the thyroid during surgery. 

FY 21-69     $26,784.39 

Non-Budget Item 

This item was requested by Mary Fischer and Jim Horan.  It is a replacement for a heat exchanger that 

supplies hot water to the lab.  Mr. Horan explained that this is an end of service life situation for this 

water heater. 

 General Discussion 

Board members will most likely note that the bad debt submitted for approval this month is 

substantially lower than the past few months. 

Reimbursement Improvement Program 

The magnitude of bad debt has been a hospital staff and board concern.  Ron Cheese presented a 

preliminary standalone report on the Reimbursement Improvement Program for inclusion in board 

packets.  The report was reviewed and additions requested by the committee.  This report will aide 

board member understanding of bad debt and document progress in the area. 

NEXT MEETING 

Their will be two F&A Committee meetings in May.  The usual meeting will be on Wednesday, May 26, 

at 1400 hours.  An F&A Committee budget review meeting will also be held.  As of this wring May 17th or 

May 18th is under consideration – time to be determined.  Both meetings most likely in Zoom format, 

 

144/250



145/250



146/250



147/250



148/250



149/250



150/250



151/250



152/250



153/250



154/250



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

April 28, 2021 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee-Chairman 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee  

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:  Mr. Taylor Jones Trustee 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Ann Clevenger, CNO 

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

 

 

Non-Voting Members Absent : Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

 

Guests:    Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director 

       

      

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order via teleconference at 2:00 PM. 

 

     Agenda 

 

A motion to approve the agenda was made by Ms. Love; second by Ms. Richardson.  Motion 

carried.  
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of March 31, 2021 was made by Ms. Love; second by 

Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.    
 

Capital Requests 
 

 

The first capital item up for approval was FY21-67 for the Thyroid locator. There were not any 

questions on this capital request.  Mr. Tardoni said that this equipment seems like a necessary 

purchase.  This was not a budgeted item.  The motion to submit to the Board was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried. 

 

FY21-62 was a request for a Hot Water Heat Exchanger.  Mr. Tardoni asked what the failure was 

on this exchanger.  Mr. Horan said this exchanger was rotted out on the inside.  He said it has 

just reached its end of life.  Mr. Horan said they received a second quote after this capital request 

was submitted.  The amount of this capital request will be lower when sent to the board for 

155/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 28, 2021 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

approval. A motion to submit to the Board was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Ms. Richardson. 

Motion carried. 

 

 

 

Financial Report 

 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative for March.  March had an operating gain of $396,326 compared 

to budgeted loss of $369,326.  The YTD total net gain is $2,056,204.  The revenue was up by $3 

million from last month.  We are still exceeding the AR goals for accounts over 90 days.  Net 

AR days are down 2 days.  We had a record high collection month in March with $8.8 million 

collected.  Days of cash on hand increased 14 days to 211.  This increased because we received 

the SLIB funds in March.   

 

We have reconciled $9.2 million of CARES funds. We did not make an entry for the first quarter 

of 2021 because of the high revenue in March.  We have approximately $2.3-2.6 million left to 

reconcile by the end of the fiscal year.   

 

Mr. Tardoni noted while reviewing the financial information in the packet he did not see 

anything alarming.  He asked if he was correct.  Ms. Richardson agreed.  She said you will see 

variances based on timing.  For example, the high collection month was partly due to having 5 

Mondays in the month.  Mondays are when we receive our large BCBS vouchers.   

 

Mr. Cheese said that the preliminary bad debt for March is $910,336.56.  The final bad debt 

amount will be presented to the Board for approval.   

  

 

 

Old Business 

 

Self-Pay Plan 

 

Mr. Cheese presented a draft report on the self-pay plan.    He included numbers for the 20% 

self-pay discounts, the new 50% hardship program, total self-pay payments, total self-pay 

revenue, medical assistance, payment plans and savings from the patient navigation program.  

Dr. Sowada asked if we could add the number of accounts to this report.  She asked if many 

people take advantage of the 20% self-pay discount.  Mr. Cheese said this has been very 

successful in getting money in the door quicker.  She also asked what criteria was needed to 

qualify for the hardship plan.  Mr. Cheese explained the service not covered has to be pure self-

pay.  He said they first will see if the patient qualifies for medical assistance before looking at 

the hardship plan.  Dr. Sowada also asked if anyone had seen the information out from CMS on a 

grant for patient navigators.  Ms. Richardson said that she had seen the article and they are 

currently working to see if we qualify for that grant.  Mr. Tardoni asked if it would be possible to 

flowchart this information.  He would also like everyone to think of indicators of performance.  

He said so much is impacted by our current economy and population changes.  Dr. Sowada 

suggested the number of people turned over to collections could be a good indicator.  Mr. 

156/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 28, 2021 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Tardoni said that he was satisfied with the report and it should be included in the monthly 

finance packet.   

 

 

New Business 

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Ms. Love said we would like to schedule the Finance Budget Workshop the week of May 17th.  

She will send out an email to see if May 17th or May 18th would work best and then schedule the 

meeting. 

 

The next F&A meeting will be held May 26th at 2pm. 

 

Mr. Tardoni adjourned the meeting at 3:08 PM. 

 

 

 
 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

 

 

157/250



158/250



159/250



160/250



161/250



162/250



163/250



164/250



165/250



166/250



167/250



168/250



169/250



170/250



171/250



172/250



173/250



174/250



175/250



176/250



177/250



178/250



179/250



180/250



181/250



182/250



183/250



184/250



185/250



186/250



187/250



188/250



189/250



190/250



191/250



192/250



193/250



194/250



195/250



196/250



197/250



198/250



199/250



200/250



201/250



202/250



203/250



204/250



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…April Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  April 27, 2021 
 
Central Plant Expansion Project…no progress. Still withholding entire retainage. Contractor 
seemingly has little interest in bringing this project to a close anytime soon. 
 
HVAC/UVG/S-1 Projects…Good progress; projected completion date to be provided next 
meeting; large change order to be discussed later in the meeting. 
 
Medical Imaging Renovation Project…Similar to the HVAC/UVG/S-1 Projects; change order to be 
discussed later in the meeting. 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room Project…Staff determined it not necessary to bring in an 
industrial hygienist due to testing methods. Continuing concerns about possible safety issues. I 
asked about inclusion in the FY 2022 budget. Staff said it was possible. 
 
Pharmacy Compounding Room Project…Project is almost completed. 
 
Dr. Sulentich Office Project…All approvals have been secured. Project is ready to move forward. 
 
Bulk Oxygen Project…Need to work with Air Gas to get new agreement in place. There will likely 
be a significant yearly cost increase. Significant work needs to be done on site to bring the 
facility up to an acceptable standard. 
 
Building Automation System Project…this project is ready to proceed having received Board 
approval. Utility savings are anticipated upon project completion. 
 
Tabled Projects…Power House Roofing, Waldner House work, and OB bathtubs conversion to 
showers…all on hold for now…funding will be provided in the FY 2022 budget. 
 
Groathouse Change Order Request…staff is recommending approval of Changer Order No. 3 to 
the contract between Groathouse Construction, Inc. and the Hospital in the amount of 
$571,034. This change order affects the HVAC/UVG project, the S-1 Project, and the Medical 
Imaging Remodel project. The details of the change order were presented by Jake and Will. A 
significant amount of time was spent going over every aspect of the change order. After 
discussion, the Committee voted to approve the change order request and seek a special Board 
meeting ASAP due to CARES Act funding requirements to review and approve same. 
 
More detail can be obtained in the B & G meeting minutes. 

205/250



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Tuesday ~ April 20, 2021  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

   

Voting Board Committee Members:     Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chairman  

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

 

Voting Staff Committee Members:   Irene Richardson, CEO 

Tami Love, CFO 

Jim Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

Non-voting Members:     Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Stevie Nosich, Safety Coordinator 

 

Guests:      Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering 

Will Wheatley – PlanOne Architects 

Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – March 16, 2021    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Department overtime  

c. Budget variance 

 

5. Old Business        

a. Project Review       

i. Central Plant expansion    Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

ii. HVAC/UVG projects    Jake Blevins     

iii. Medical Imaging renovation   Will Wheatley/Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

iv. S1 Unit      Jake Blevins 

v. Chemo Mixing room    Jim Horan 

vi. Pharmacy Compounding room   Gerry Johnston 

vii. Dr. Sulentich Office    Will Wheatley 

viii. Bulk Oxygen     Jim Horan 

ix. Building automation system   Jim Horan 

b. Tabled projects      Jim Horan 

i. Replacement roofing for power house  

206/250



ii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

iii. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

   

6. New Business       Jim Horan 

a. HVAC/UVG/Medical Imaging Change Orders 

 

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. May18, 2021 Classroom 1 or Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

207/250



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

April 20, 2021 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on April 20, 2021, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

   Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

    

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the March 16, 2021 meeting. Dr. 

Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said the metrics continue to remain pretty consistent.  They have seen some overtime 

due to the spring snow removal.   
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins said BHI is completing the punch list.  We are still holding the full retainage.  He will 

be onsite later in the week for a walkthrough of the punch list completions.  The total retainage is 

approximately $300,000.  Mr. Kelsey said it is disconcerting to him regrading this contractor.  Mr. 

Blevins agreed and does prefer the CMAR contracts for this reason.  

 

 HVAC/UVG Projects 

 

Mr. Blevins, Mr. Wheatley and Groathouse just finished an OAC meeting and everything is 

moving right along.  Everyone is staying on task with the new Imaging and S1 projects.  The new 

air handler will be started up in the next couple weeks.  The temporary unit is in place.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked about the expected completion date.  Mr. Blevins said the contractor is working with MHSC 

staff to address the functional challenges of “musical chairs” of each area getting completed.  Mr. 

Wheatley says he will have the completion schedules ready to discuss at the next meeting. 

 

. 

208/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 20, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said this project ties with the rest of the current project.  They are working on 

infection control and egress processes and the area has been gutted.  He said the final package 

from the State was received by the City of Rock Springs today.  He is going through submittals as 

received and things will start moving in the near future. 

   

S1 Unit 

 

Mr. Blevins said the permits are in place from HLS and City of RS. There was asbestos found and 

abatement has started.  The temporary air handler will be started up next week so progress will 

start on the removal of the old unit and construction on the new. 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Horan said we did make the decision not to bring in an industrial hygienist.  In discussions 

with the Director of Pharmacy, Kari Quickenden and the vendor, the testing they do would not 

meet the concerns we are having regarding the area.  Mr. Kelsey asked if this project will be 

included in the FY2022 Construction project.  

 

Pharmacy Compounding Room  

 

Mr. Johnston said the project is almost done.  They are waiting on balancers for a tab report.  The 

final electrical inspection was done today.  The partition walls have been removed so the area can 

be cleaned up. 

  

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Wheatley received the final signed documents from Ms. Richardson today.  Dr. Sulentich and 

his team did confirm their reimbursement issues would be remedied with this project.  Ms. 

Richardson has the email to support from Dr. Sulentich showing the decision to move forward. 

 

Bulk Oxygen 

 

Mr. Horan said this project will start ramping up in June or July.  We can keep it tabled until then.  

Mr. Kelsey asked about the new contract.  Mr. Horan said the new agreement has not been signed 

yet.  We will be looking at it over the next few weeks.  Any company supplying oxygen would 

have the same requirements. 

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Horan thanked the Board for approving this project.  He understands the concern from the 

Board regarding the sole source vendors but believes going with a known vendor is the best.  

Everything has been signed and all have been notified and we are waiting on a start date. 

 

 

 

 

209/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 20, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Tabled Projects   

 

There are no new updates on the remaining tabled projects as most are on hold for the spring 

weather.  Ms. Love mentioned these projects will also be included in the FY2022 Capital Budget. 

 

 Replacement Roofing for Power House  

 Foundation Waldner House Wall  

 OB Bathtubs to Showers  

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Blevins reviewed the budget status report sent to the Committee prior to the meeting.  He 

summarized the original project amount with contingency funds and the two prior approved change 

orders for Medical Imaging and S1 Unit which also included contingency funds.  He explained the 

different categories including Fast Track, Scope Expansion, Scope Refinement and Unforeseen 

conditions.  The changes were reviewed to see if contingency funds could be used or if a change 

order was needed. He wants to assure there are still sufficient contingency funds available for the 

remaining projects.  Mr. Kelsey asked if these changes on the S1 Unit were due to the project being 

rushed and no fault of the contractor.  Mr. Blevins agreed and said that was a fair statement.  Mr. 

Wheatley described the additions in the Medical Imaging portion of the change order.  They both 

confirmed there were no duplicate efforts or overlap from the original HVAC project.  Mr. Kelsey 

asked why the noncompliant areas in the north corridor weren’t included in the original project.  

Mr. Blevins said that area was not included in the first HVAC project.  It was decided later to 

finish out the back hallway of Medical Imaging where the noncompliant areas were found and 

scope was added.   

 

Mr. Horan thanked Mr. Blevins for the explanations.  He said as the project grew we looked at the 

patient flow and patient care areas in Medical Imaging could benefit from this construction. It will 

be an almost complete renovation of the Imaging Suite.  Dr. Sowada said it sounds like 90% of 

Imaging will have been updated by the end of this project.  She also asked about the waiting areas.  

Ms. Love said we are also working with Staples to replace the waiting room furniture house wide.  

Mr. Kelsey asked about the impact of the change order on the financials and our priorities.  Ms. 

Richardson thanked everyone for the detailed explanations.  She said the HVAC and S1 Unit 

portions of the change order will be under our CARES Act funding and need to be completed by 

June 30.  Ms. Richardson recommended we hold a special Board meeting to get this change order 

approved so we can keep on schedule. Mr. Blevins said the base contract is tracking on schedule 

to be finished by June 30.  He will check on the schedule for the S1 Unit.  Mr. Kelsey asked where 

this fits in as a priority of the hospital.  Ms. Richardson said the deferred maintenance of the 

hospital, which includes the older Imaging suite is a priority. Mr. Kelsey and Dr. Sowada agreed 

on the recommendation of a special board meeting. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked how confident we are that the remaining contingency is sufficient.  Mr. Blevins 

feels the contingency level will be appropriate with these changes.  Mr. Wheatley said he also 

spoke to Groathouse regarding the contingency and all agree.  Mr. Kelsey said he is a little 

concerned with contingency at only 5%.  Dr. Sowada asked if all the surprises in Imaging and the 

S1 Unit have been identified and accounted for.  Mr. Blevins said yes but there are some areas that 

have not been turned over to the contractor yet. 

 

210/250



 

 

Minutes of the April 20, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 4 

Mr. Kelsey made a motion to forward the proposed Change Order for $571,034 to the Board at a 

special meeting with a do pass recommendation.  Dr. Sowada seconded the motion. Ms. 

Richardson said she appreciates all of the conversation and their support on this priority.  The 

motion passed. Mr. Kelsey asked her to work with Ms. Nelson and Mr. Jones in scheduling a 

special meeting.  He also asked Ms. Richardson send a cover letter with her position attached to 

the ST&B memo as soon as possible to the Board members. 

 

The next meeting will be held May 18 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:57 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

211/250



COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD APRIL  2021 

 Ed Tardoni 

The Compliance Committee met in April in Zoom format.  All voting members were present. 

Board attention is directed to the following: 

Update on status of risk assessment mitigation plan 

Two years ago, MHSC staff completed a risk assessment that ranked identified risks.  This work was 

completed by hospital wide working groups.  A compliance plan was developed to mitigate the 

identified risks.  A year ago, it was decided to continue with the compliance plan as there were still 

outstanding mitigation items.  The Compliance package for this month includes an update on the plan.  

The majority of items have been completed.   The Committee was informed that a new risk ranking task 

will be initiated in the September / October time frame of this year. 

Audit report on Patient Grievance Policy compliance 

A report on this completed audit was presented to the Committee and may be found in this month’s 

packet.  Board attention is directed to the description of the methodology utilized during the audit. 

The ensuing discussion of the audit led to the conclusion that an improvement opportunity existed in 

the area of documentation on the part of the Grievance Committee.  It is known that all patient 

grievances are reviewed by the Grievance Committee but the audit could only identify documentation 

on 50% of those reviews.  The same documentation improvement exists for recording the resolution of 

grievances.  The audit found good compliance but documentation of the resolutions was spread 

throughout many areas and had to be extensively researched. 

Misc. 

 Work on the revision of the Compliance and Risk Management Policy continues. 

 The Fair Warnings report was reviewed.  MHSC staff is looking at what is involved in replacing 

Fair Warnings with an application resident in Cerner known as PS2. 

NEXT MEETING  

The next meeting of the committee will be held May 27, 2021 at 1530 hours most likely by Zoom. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

212/250



 

     Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

     Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

April 22nd, 2021 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, Susan Campbell, Noreen Hove, Ed Tardoni, Marty Kelsey, April 
Prado 

Minutes 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:40pm by Ed Tardoni. 
 
A “Mission Moments” was on the agenda but one was not shared. 
  
The April agenda was approved as written, Susan made the motion and Marty seconded it. The meeting 
minutes from February and March were presented. February was approved with Susan making the 
motion and Noreen making the second. March was also approved, Marty made the motion and Noreen 
made the second. 
 

Old Business 
A. Review Compliance Work Plan and Updates-Noreen presented the Compliance Work Plan and 

noted that we would be getting a new plan in September. #1Identify Compliance Risk 
Areas/Emerging Risks was stated to be complete. #2 Medical Malpractice Claim Submission-
Susan reported that this was complete and had been added to our ins. policy. #3 Professional 
Services Billing-this is done but will carry over and be ongoing. #4 New Software Implement 
#7ation-we will do this with Cerner and will carry over. It was noted that we have had no IT 
Director. #5 Coding Training and Education-this has been sent to our HIM Director to look at. #6 
HIPAA Privacy and Security Regulations-We may be switching to PS2 but Noreen was unsure and 
will check on this. It was questioned if our current system, FairWarning, had been notified. #7 
Denial Management-This has not been done and April will follow up with the parties involved. 
#8 Recovery Audit Contractor Readiness-Not completed. April will follow up with Tami to get 
this figured out. #9 Patient Grievances and Guest Relations-This has been completed and the 
newest audit was presented at this meeting. #10 Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery-
Completed and sent to Finance #11 Anti-Kickback Law-Susan in working on this-it is included in 
the “Code of Conduct” policy. #12 Workers Compensation Claim Submission-Not complete. April 
will reach out to Amber to get this finished. 

 

New Business 
A- Update on Compliance and Risk Management policy- Susan reported that earlier Ed and 

Marty had suggested that we look into an Enterprise Risk Management module. Susan 
stated that this policy was out on hold for a bit while we decided which way we were going 
to go. She continued that that decision has been made and this policy is back in motion. 

Reports 
January Fair Warning report-This report was submitted and reviewed by this board. It shows that we are 
below average for HIPAA violations. We had no reports that had to go to HR and no corrective actions. It 
was asked who in the hospital is taking care of these and it was stated that HIM and the HR Director 
were. 
Grievances- Noreen shared that the Grievance Committee reviewed 6 cases in February and all were 

closed in a timely manner except one. She reported that we are following the process as defined in the 

  

213/250



 

Grievance policy with regard to notification and communication with the grievant. There was 3 

grievances in March and all were settled in a timely manner 

Audits- The committee was given the audit report on “Grievances and Guest Relations” for review. April 

briefly explained the audit, its process and the results. She stated that documentation appeared to be 

the biggest downfall. Noreen reported that she would like to be at 100% in all of the audited areas 100% 

of the time. Ed noted that it is rare to be at 100% in everything. He continued that these audits should 

be viewed as opportunities for improvement-it shows us where we can improve. He continued that 

documentation would be an area of improvement. The MIDAS system was discussed and the lack of 

trained users. It was questioned if a new system would be in place soon. Synergi is a system that is 

currently being looked at and may be the replacement. Ed stated that we need to make sure we are 

doing what we say we are doing. Marty asked for clarification on what grievances are seen by the 

Grievance Committee. Noreen stated that all grievances go to the committee for review. Ed added that 

these audits are very important because they show us weak areas and essentially save us from 

something larger happening.  

   

Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 4:21p.m. 
 

Next Meeting   May 27th, 2020 @3:30pm.  
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
_________________________________________________ 
April Prado, Recording Secretary 

214/250



215/250



216/250



217/250



218/250



219/250



220/250



221/250



222/250



223/250



224/250



225/250



226/250



227/250



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

April 9, 2021 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

Non-voting Members Present: Marianne Sanders 

Call Meeting to Order 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 

 

Discussion 

Agenda was created during the meeting. 

Minutes March minutes had been previously approved by email  

New Business 

1. Richard initiated discussion regarding benefits of keeping a permanent record of meetings that are 

neither board or board committee meetings, but where hospital management and/or board members 

are in attendance, such as recent meetings regarding the disposition of the ambulance. It was agreed 

that such a record is beneficial; no plan to accomplish this was identified.  

Old Business 

1. Discussion regarding Board policies. Barbara provided two lists of board policies. The first was policies 

approved, or to be approved, by the board between May, 2017 and April, 2021. The second was a list 

of board policies we don’t have but are recommended by The Governance Institute. (Both lists are 

attached.) Currently, board policies are not in any kind of standardized format and are intermingled 

with hospital policies in policystat, making it difficult to know what we (the board) have, why we have 

them, and when they were last reviewed. 

2. Marianne had determined that a separate category for board policies can be provided in policystat. As 

well as having a board category, it was decided to use a red background for the banner heading for 

board policies, in contrast to hospital policies which have a green background. Using policystat 

provides one repository for board policies and standardizes policy format, making it easy for board 

policies to be retrieved. The policystat format also makes it easy to see revision date(s), required 

regulatory standard, and who signed off.  

3. Marianne and Robin Fife will begin to move the board approved policies into policystat. One of the 

anticipated challenges will be finding the regulatory standards, where appropriate.  

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:00 pm. 

Next meeting is April 26th at 2:00 pm by Zoom. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

228/250



Board Policies Approved 

*Guidelines for Negotiating NPP Agreements 3/21 

*Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts 3/21 

Spending Authority and Matrix 10/17 

*Executive Oversight 6/17 

*Management’s Duty to Disclose 6/17 

Contract Review & Approval 9/17 

Contracts Requiring Board Approval 12/17 

Contract Management Policy 12/17 

*Conflict of Interest 8/18 

Board Agenda 12/18 

Board E-mail Communication 12/18 

Investment Policy 12/18 

*Physician Credentialing tbd 

Professional Practice Review Plan 1/20 

Financial Hardship 5/20 

Termination & Appeal tbd 

Attendance of Board Committee Meetings 9/20 

Maintenance of Board and Board Committee Meetings Minutes 10/20 

Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board ??/21 

Miscellaneous PolicyStat 

Board Charters are now in policy stat. 

229/250



Policies Needed (Perhaps) According to TGI 

Board role in development/philanthropy 

Information transparency (info to public re measures of quality, safety, pricing, etc) 

Annual Community Benefit Report 

Board Compliance Plan (monitoring of MD employment, directorship, etc) 

CEO Succession Plan 

Audit 

Financial Assistance and charity care 

Prohibition of excessive collection efforts and reporting accounts to credit rating 

agencies 

Loans to Trustees and Management 

Annual Operating Budget 

Emergency decision-making 

Clinical Governance 

Liability insurance 

Competition and Conflict of Interest as pertains to physicians 

Assuring new services meet quality and financial criteria 

Auditing of physician credentialing process 

Review of quality data 

 

230/250



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

April 26, 2021 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

Non-voting Members Present: Marianne Sanders and Suzan Campbell 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 

 

Discussion 

Agenda was created during the meeting. 

Minutes April 9, 2021, minutes had been previously approved by email  

New Business 

1. Attendance of Board Committee Meetings policy was reviewed in light of an email question from 

Taylor whether Board committee meetings are open to the public, thus allowing Kandi Pendleton 

board-member-in-training to attend committee meetings. According to state statute, with the 

exception of Quality meetings, Board committee meetings are open to the public, thus Kandi may 

attend committee meetings. According to Roger Angel’s presentation on open meeting laws, standing 

committee meetings only have to be advertised annually, and committee meetings are open to all 

board members without triggering a quorum or requiring the meeting be open to the public. Because 

Kandi is considered a board-member-in-training, it was decided that she is eligible to attend Board 

committee meetings. It was also decided that this policy needs to be revised. 

Old Business 

1. Discussion regarding Board policies and policystat. Marianne, Cindy, and Robin are moving Board 

policies into policystat, the hospital’s policy software program. The software allows for Board policies 

to be housed in their own category, separating them from hospital policies. Policystat standardizes 

the appearance and format of these policies, including allowing for dates of approval and revision, 

regs standards, and signature lines.  

It was decided that Board policies will be “unlocked” in policystat. In other words, anyone who 

has access to the software can access Board policies. 

There are 19 policies being moved into policystat. Their approval dates range from 2017 to now. 

Hence, many need to be reviewed and revised, which will be completed by June 30, 2021. 

2. Discussion regarding revised Board Bylaws. To date only Marty has commented on the revision. 

Richard will facilitate the discussion regarding the revision at the May Board meeting. 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:45 pm. 

Next meeting is May 7th at 2:00 pm by Zoom. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

231/250



232/250



233/250



234/250



235/250



236/250



237/250



238/250



239/250



240/250



241/250



242/250



243/250



244/250



245/250



246/250



247/250



248/250



249/250



250/250


	Agenda - May 5 2021 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	April 7 2021 Minutes
	Minutes for April 26 2021 Special Meeting Draft
	Telecommuting
	Cover Letter Regarding Revision of Board of Trustees Bylaws
	Bylaws Suzans draft April 2021
	Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care
	Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Board Policy
	Public Records Policy Update 2021
	803120 - Public Records Request 3.21
	Public Records Invoice April 2021
	Emergency Operations Plan
	Quality Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...April 2021
	4.21.21 Quality Minutes
	Quality Committee Pt Safety and Accreditation Summary April
	HR chair report APRIL 2021 Ed Tardoni
	Agenda April 19 2021 HR Committee
	Human Resources Minutes April 19 2021 Draft
	Turnover for Board from April 2021 Meeting
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	Capital Expenditure Requests
	Bad Deb
	Agenda Finance Comm April 28 2021
	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes April 28 2021 Draft
	Narrative to March 2021 Financials for April 28 2021 Meeting Packet
	Finance Packet for April 28 2021 Meeting and May Board Meeting
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...April 2021 Kelsey
	2021 Agenda April
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes April 20 2021 Draft
	Compliance Committee chair report APRIL 2021 Ed Tardoni
	BCC Meeting Minutes April 2021
	compliance Packet for May Question
	Governance Minutes April 9 2021 Sowada
	Governance Board Policies Approve1 Sowada April 9 2021
	Governance Minutes April 26 2021 Sowada
	Fibertech
	2. Wolters Kluwer for UpToDate Subscription Service 
	Amendment to Press Ganey Master Service Agreement
	ConnectAmerica
	3. Martin Ray 

